Risk Management. The City maintains sufficient insurance coverage to replace property in the event of fire,
theft, etc., and provide for umbrella liability and workman's compensation coverage. In 1989, the City instituted
an Accident Review and Safety Committee Board encompassing all City departments. Each accident and
workman's compensation claim, as well as safety suggestions, are reviewed by this Board. There were no
catastrophic claims during the year.

In conjunction with its implementation of the Accident Review and Safety Board, the City instituted a policy
requiring all new City employees and all workers’ compensation claimants to submit to a drug test. This policy is
supplemented by an "Employee Assistance Program" which is designed to help drug dependent employees treat
their problems. The combination of these policies has helped to reduce significantly the number of work-related
accidents and costs.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The
accounting firm of Grant Thornton, LLP, was selected by the City Council. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, as well as the requirements of the
federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and the related U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-128.
Generally accepted auditing standards and the standards set forth in the General Accounting Office’s Government
Auditing Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor's report on the general-
purpose financial staternents and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the
financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations can be found in a separately issued single audit report.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Alpharetta for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. The City received its first Certificate for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1989.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that the current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and will
submit it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was
made possible by the dedicated service of the City's Finance Department staff, Each member of the staff has my
sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report. In closing, without the
leadership and support of the governing body of the City, preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Sincerely,

Can/ By

Aaron J. Bovos, CGFM
Director of Finance
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Fresented to

City of Alpharetta,
Georgia

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2001

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President
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Executive Director
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Accountants and
Management Consultants

The US Member Firm of
Grant Thornton International

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Alpharetta, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Alpharetta, Georgia,
as of June 30, 2002, and for the year then ended. These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material
nusstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the City of Alpharetta, Georgia, as of June 30, 2002, and the results of its
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying financial information listed as supplemental information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the
City of Alpharetta, Georgia. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects
in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The information included in the statistical section is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. This information was not subjected to the
audit procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on such information.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 18, 2002 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. ‘This report is an integral part of, and should be
read in conjunction with, our report on the financial statements.

M\ﬂ‘m«&uup

Atlanta, Georgia
October 18, 2002

2300 North Tower

235 Peachtree St., N.E.
Atlanta, GA 30303-1499
Tel: 404 330-2000

Fax: 404 330-2047
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(Combined Statements - Overview)

The following five combined financial statements, along with
the Notes to the Financial Statements, present an overview of
the City’s financial positions and changes in proprietary fund
financial position and cash flows for the year then ended.

Individual Funds and account groups utilized by the City are

grouped on these statements into four categories.
Governmental Fund Types

These funds (General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and
Capital Projects) are those through which most govemmental
functions are typically financed. The governmental fund
measurement focus is ob “financial flow,” the accounting for
sources and uses of available spendable resources, not on net

income determination.

Proprietary Fund Types

These funds (Enterprise and Internal Service Funds) are used
to account for the City’s ongoing activities which are similar to
those found in the private sector. The proprietary fund

measurement focus 1s on “capital maintenance” as in private
industry, with the emphasis on net income determination.

Fiduciary Fund Types

These funds (Trust and Agency Funds) are used to account for
assets held on behalf of outside parties. Expendable Trust
funds have the same measurement focus as govenunemal
funds. Agency funds are used to account for asscts held by the
govemnment as an agent for others.

Account Groups

Account groups are used to establish accounting control for
general fixed assets and unmatured principal of general long-
term debt. Because these assets and liabilities are long-term
they are neither spendable resources nor require current appro-
priation. They ar® therefore accounted for separat® from
govemnmental fund types.

e
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CITY OF AL PHARETTA, GEORGIA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND 8ALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
For the fiscal year Juna 30, 2002

General Fund Special Revenue Funds
Variance Variance
Favorabla Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budgst Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Property Taxes $ 10726222 % 12,345201 § 1618979 % - § - $ -
Cther Taxes 9,692,183 10,506,323 814,140 B62,240 2,218,858 1,356,319
Licensas and Permits 2,494,500 1,433,757 {1,060,743) - - -
Intergovermmental 630,000 783,227 153,227 - - -
Charges for Services 1,376,110 2,233,082 856,972 5,000 1,128,866 1,124,866
Fines and Forfeitures 513,221 635,903 322,682 44,853 100,624 55,711
Impact Fees - - - 2,322,000 722,324 (1,589,676)
Investmert earnings 547,840 318,051 {228,889} - 83,786 83,785
Other 5,000 96,650 91,658 - - .
Total Revenues 25,985,176 28,553 203 2,568 027 - 3,234 093 4,255,159 1,021,066
Expenditures:
Current;
General Govemment:
City Administrator 935,047 951,025 (15,978) . . .
Mayor and Council 230,168 166,942 63,226 - - .
Legal Services 224,400 290,202 34,188 . - .
Municipal Court 374,671 340,242 34,629 B - -
Financial Services 861,047 860,024 1,023 - - -
Tachnology Services 922,786 896,377 26,409 - - -
Communily Developmeant 1612671 1,511,275 101,396 - - .
Human Resourcas 533,366 500,927 {51,661) - - -
Nan-Departmental 297,500 20,000 277,500 928,800 996,653 {67,B53)
Total General Government 6,087 856 5,627,014 X 470,842 928 800 996,653 {67.853)
Public Safety:
Fire & Rescue Services 5,084,276 5,016,288 67,988 1,681,971 1,492,911 83,060
Police Services 5,263,473 5,244,069 19,404 - - -
Total Public Safety 10,547,749 10,260,357 87,392 1,581,971 1,492,911 89,080
Enginsering & Public Works 4,072,582 3,858,352 214,230 - - -
Environmental Services 474 816 352,538 122,278 - - -
Parks and Recreation 4,512,307 4,591 862 (78,555) - - -
Tourism - - - - 2,218,559 (2,218,558}
Capital Qutlay - - - - - -
Capita! Lease - - - - - -
Debt Service - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 25,506 310 24,680,123 816,187 2,510,771 4,708,123 {2,197,352)
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver Expenditures 478,866 3,863,080 3,384,214 723322 {452,964) {1,176,286)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In - 7,696 7,698 - - -
Operating Transfers Out {2,484,200) {2,484 200) - (2,253,2000 {860,00Q) 1,353,200
Sale of Assets - 379,993 379,953 - - -
Total Other Financing Sources {Usos} (2,484,200) {2,096,511) 387,683 {2,253,200) (850,000) 1,393,200
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses {2,005,334) 1,766,569 3,771,903 (1,529,878) {1,312,964) 216,914
Fund Balanca, July 1 10,349,144 10,349,144 - 3,587,895 3,587,895 -
Fund Balance, June 30 3 8343810 $ 12115713 % 3771903 % 2,058,017 % 2274931 % 216,914
(CONTINUED}

The accompanying netes ta the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GECRGIA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the fiscal year June 30, 2002

Expendable
Debt Service Fund Capital Project Funds Trust Fund
Variance Actual Variance Variance
Favorable/ {Budget Favorable/ Favorabie/
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Basis) _{Unfavorable} Budget Actual (Unfavorabte)
5063770 % 5249,167 3 185397 3 - $ . - S - ¥ - -
- - - 696,452 354,596 (301,856} - - -
68,219 58,464 (9.755) 365,000 236,097 {128,903) 475 294 (181

- - - - 5904 53,068 - - -
5,131,989 5,307,631 175,642 1,061,452 689,761 {371.691) 475 294 (181

- - - - - - 475 - 475

. . - - - - 475 - 475

- . - 4,082,068 6,762,970 4,129,058 - - -

- - - 40,130 40,129 1 - - -
7,315,297 5,728,088 1,587,209 - - - - - -
7,315.297 5,728,088 1,587,209 1,122,188 6,803,099 (5,680,501} 475 - 475

{2,183,308) (420,457) 1,762,851 (60,7456} (6.113,338) (6,052,552) - 294 294
2,183,308 2,183,308 - 2,309,200 2,309,200 - - - -
- - - (1.323,308) 1,323,308} - - (7.6596) (7. 696)
2,183,308 2,183,208 - 985,892 985,892 - - (7,696) (7,696)
- 1,762,851 1,762,851 925 146 (5,127,448} (6.052,592) - {7.402) (7.402)
498,095 498,095 - 9,790,223 9,790,223 - 7.402 7,402 -
468,095 § 2260%46 % 1,762,851 § 10715369 % 4662777 $ (6,052,592} $ 7402 % - {7,402}
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

IN RETAINED EARNINGS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES l
Year Ended June 30, 2002 l

Component
Total Development
Internal {Memorandum Authority of '
Enterprise Service Oniy) Alpharetta
Operating Revenues:
Operating Revenue $ - $ 3265594 $ 3265594 § -
Water Revenue 2,211,116 - 2,211,116 - l
Sewer Revenue 1,713,954 - 1,713,954 -
Solid Waste Revenue 1,622,493 - 1,622,493 -
Total Operating Revenues 5,547,563 3,265,594 8,813,157 - l
Operating Expenses:
Personal Services 766,708 - 766,708 -
Purchased Services 1,690,809 - 1,690,809 -
Materials and Supplies 2,965,685 - 2,965,685 -
Depreciation 226,831 - 226,831 -
Benefits and Claims - 3,702,226 3,702,226 -
Other 53,059 122,281 175,340 - I
Total Operating Expenses 5,703,092 3,824 507 9,527,599 -
Operating Loss {155,529} {558,913) {714,442) - I
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings 48,731 38,556 87,287 370,732
Interest Expense {93,084} - (93,084) (370,732)
Insurance Proceeds - 163,710 163,710 -
Total Non-operating Revenues {Expenses) (44,353) 202,266 157,913 - '
Net Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers {199,882) (356,647) (556,529) -
Operating Transfers l
Operating Transfer In 175,000 - 175,000 -
Net Income (Loss) (24,882) (356,647} (381,529) - l
Retained Earnings, July 1 2,357 802 1,077,556 3,435,358 -
Retained Eamings, June 30 $ 2332920 $ 720,909 $ 3,053,829 $ - I
The accompanying notes te the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. I
19 I




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenue derived
from specific taxes or other earmarked revenue sources (other
than for major capital projects) that are restricted by law or
administrative action to expenditure for specified purposes.

Hotel - Motel Fund

Established to account for the Occupancy Tax collected by
the City from area hotels and motels, and distributed based
upon State Statute. The revenues associated with this tax
are legally restricted to specific purposes.

Community Greenspace Fund

This fund was established pursuant to the City’s participation
in the statewide Community Greenspace Program. Revenues
are derived directly from the State and restricted to capital
expenses relating to Passive Greenspace.

Emergency 911 Fund

Established to account for funds received from users of the
Emergency 911 System. The funds are to be used for
expenditures necessary to maintain the System within the City.

Impact Fees

Established to account for fees assessed upon Development Activity. The
fees shall be collected to pay for system improvements as detailed in the
City’s Impact Fee ordinance.

Drug Enforcement Agency Fund

Established to account for funds received from the Drug
Enforcement Agency for shared revenues resulting from
confiscation of property from drug offender’s arrest. The
revenues are restricted to law enforcement and cannot be used
to supplant the normal operating budget of the Police
Department.
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Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable

Totat Assets

Llabifities and Fund Balances

Liabifities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries
Compensated Absencas Payahle
Deferred Revenue
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved;
Reserved for Prepaid ltems
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Public Safety
Reserved for Capital and Community
Improvement Projects

Unreserved:
Designated for Operations
Unraserved and Undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liahiliies and Fund Balance

CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMEINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

Hotel Community Emergency Impact Drug Totals
Matet Greenspace 911 Fee Enforcement 2002 2001
179 & 196,508 3 17,819 $ 4,941 107,286 $ 335733 $ 287819
1,543 200,283 691 467 1,228,448 - 2,121,741 3,501,867
191,450 - 91,028 - - 282,478 352,582
202,172 § 396,791 $ 800314 $ 1,233,389 107,286 $ 2,739,952 $ 4222068
114870 % - s 11,619 $ 14,092 8,131 $ 148712 $ 613,399
- - 12,040 - - 12,040 10,567
- - 10,317 . - 10,317 10,207
- 217,372 - - - 217,372 -
78,580 - - - - 76,580 -
191,450 217,372 33,976 14,002 8,131 465,021 534,173
- - 8.979 - - 8,979 175,061
- - - - - - 1,319
. 179,419 - 1,219,297 - 1,398,716 2,298,549
. - 179,978 - - 179,978 -
10,722 - 577,381 - 99,155 687,258 1,112,966
10,722 179418 766,338 1,219,297 99,155 2,274,931 3,587 B95
202172 8§ 396,781 $  B0O3M4 $_1,233.389 107,286 $ 2739952 § 4,222,068
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENLUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
(With Comparative Totals for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001)

Hotel Community Emergency Impact Drug Totals
Motel Greenspace 911 Fee Enforcement 2002 200t
Revenues:
impact Fees : $ - $ - H - $ 722324 - - § 72324 $ 1,258,504
Hotet/Mote! Taxes 2,218,559 - - - - 2,218,559 2,458,270
Charges for Sarvices . - 1,129,866 - - 1,129,866 1,038,203
Forfeitura Income - - - - 100,624 100,624 7.790
Investment Eamings - - 22,086 59,435 2,265 83,786 158,502
Other - - - - - - 179,384
Total Revenues 2,218,559 - 1,151,952 781,759 102,889 4,255,159 5,101,663
Expenditures:
General Government - - - 996,653 - 996,653 171.878
Public Safety - - 1,389,472 - 93,439 1,492,911 903,369
Tourlsm 2,218,559 - - - - 2,218,559 2,458,270
Total Expenditures 2,218,559 - 1,399,472 996,653 93,438 4,708,123 3533517
Excess of Revenue
Over Expenditures - - (247 520) (214.894) 9,450 (452,964) 1,568,146
Other Financing Saurces {Uses):
Operating Transfer Out - - - {860,000) - ___{B60,000) -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - - (B50,000) - {860,000) -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses - B {247.520) (1,074,894) 9,450 (1,312,964} 1.568,148
Fund Balance, July 1 10,722 172,419 1,013.858 2,284,181 89,705 3,587 695 2,019,749
Fund Balance, June 30 L 10,722 $ 179,418 $ 766,338 $ 1,219.297 5 89,155 $ 227493 $ 3587895
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GECRGIA

HOTEL MOTEL
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BALANCE SHEET .

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
tnvestments
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Unreserved and Undesignated:
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

48

2002 2001
9,179 106,323
1,543 251,170

191,450 204,744

202,172 562,237

114,870 551,515

76,580 -

191,450 551,515

10,722 10,722
10,722 10,722
202,172 562,237




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

COMMUNITY GREENSPACE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2601

Assets 2002 2001
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 196,508 $ 4,419
investments”” 200,283 175,000
Total Assets $ 396,791 $ 1794198

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Lizbilities:
Deferred revenue $ 217,372 $ -
Total Liabilities 217,372 -
Fund Balance:
Reserved:
Reserved for Capitat Projects 179,419 179,419
Total Fund Balance 179,419 179,419
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 396,791 $ 179419
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

HOTEL MOTEL
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001}

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Hotel Motel Tax $ 2,322,000 $ 2,218,559 $ (103,441) $ 2458270
Interest - - - 10,722
Total Revenues 2,322,000 2,218,559 {103,441) 2,468,992
Expenditures:
Touirism 2,322,000 2,218,559 103,441 2,458,270
Total Expenditures 2,322,000 2,218,559 103,441 2,458,270
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures - - - 10,722
Fund Batance, July 1 10,722 10,722 - -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 10,722 $ 10,722 $ - 3 10,722
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

EMERGENCY 911
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salaries

Compensated Absences Payable
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved:
Designated for Operations
Unreserved and Undesignated:
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance
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2002 2001
$ 17,819 $ 20,105
691,467 930,439
81,028 95,658
$ 800,314 $ 1,046,202
$ 11,619 $ 11,570
12,040 10,567
10,317 10,207
33,976 32,344
8.979 1,319

179,978

577,381 1,012,539
766,338 1,013,858
$ 800,314 $ 1,046,202




CiTY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

EMERGENCY 911
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For the year Ended June 30, 2002
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Charge for Services § 862240 $ 1129866 3 267,626 $ 1,038,203
Investment Eamings 39,353 22,085 (17.267) 46,091
Qther - - - 13
Total Revenues 901,593 1,151,852 250,359 1,084,307
Expenditures:
Public Safety 1,482,971 1,399,472 83,499 841,187
Total Expenditures 1,482,971 1,309,472 83,499 841,187
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (581,378) (247.520) 333,858 243120
Fund Balance, July 1 1,013,858 1,013,858 - 770,738
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 432480 $ 768338 § 333,858 $ 1,013,858
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

IMPACT FEE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assets 2002 2001
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,941 $ 20515
Investments 1,228,448 2,225,058
Accounts Receivable - 52,180
Total Assets $ 1,233,389 $ 2297753

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liahilities:
Accounts Payable $ 14,092 $ 3,562
Total Liabilities 14,092 3,562.00
Fund Balance:
Reserved:
Reserved for Encumbrances - 175,061
Reserved for Capital and Community improvement Projects 1,219,297 2,119,130
Total Fund Balance 1,219,297 2,294 191
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,233,389 $ 2,297,753
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

IMPACT FEE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:

Impact Fees 3 - $ 722324 $ 722,324 $ 1,258,504

Investment Eamings - 59,435 5§8,435 95,534

Total Revenues - 781,759 781,759 1,354,038

Expenditures:

General Government - 996,653 (996,653} 171,878

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Qver

{Under) Expenditures - {214,894) {214 894) 1,182,160
Other Financing Source (Uses):

Operating Transfers Out (860,000} (860,000) - -

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (860,000) (860,000) - -

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues

and Other Saurces Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Uses (860,000) (1,074,894) {214,894) 1,182,160
Fund Balance, July 1 2,294,191 2,294,191 - 1,112,031
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 1434191 § 1,219,297 3 (214,894} $ 2294191
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Assels
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets
Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Fund Balance:;
Unreserved:

Unreserved and Undesignated
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA,

DRUG ENFORCEMENT AGENCY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001
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2002 2001
107,286 $ 136,457
107,286 $ 136,457

8,131 $ 48752

99,155 89,705

99,155 89,705
107,286 $ 138,457




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

DRUG ENFORCEMENT AGENCY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

Revenues:
Forfeiture Income
Investment Earnings
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Public Safety
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002
Variancea
Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable}
5,000 100,624 95624 %
5,500 2,265 (3,235)
10,500 102,689 92,389
100,000 93,439 6,561
100,000 93,439 6,561
{89,500) 9,450 98,950
89,705 89,705 -
205 99,155 98,950




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation
of resources and payment of interest and principal on general
debt of the City.






CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Receivables (Net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Taxes

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrrued Interest

Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved:
Reserved for Debt Service

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance
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2002 2001
$ 202177 $ 41,166
2,108,811 911,238
133,976 408,361
$ 2,444,964 $ 1,360,765
$ 77195 $ 1,332
- 483,687
106,823 377,651
184,018 862 670
2,260,946 498,095
§ 2,444 954 $ 1,380,765




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES |N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended June 30, 2002
(With Comparativa Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable} Actual

Revenues;

General Property Taxes $ 5,083,770 5,249,167 3 185,397 § 5628264

Investment Eamings 68,219 58,464 (9,755) 111,238

Other Revenue - - - 39,111

Total Revenues 5,131,989 5,307 631 175,642 5,778,613

Expenditures:

Bond Principal 2,521,000 2,521,000 - 1,901,250

Lease Purchase Principat 654 656 758,315 {103,659) 634 461

interest 4,136,928 2,445,663 1,691,265 3,500,287

Administrative Charges 2,713 3,110 {397) 3,118

Total Expenditures 7.315,297 3,728,088 1,587,209 6,039,116

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures {2,183,308) (420,457} 1,762,851 {260,503)
Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In 2,183,308 2,183,308 - -
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses - 1,762,851 1,762,851 (260,503)
Fund Balance, July 1 498,095 498,085 - 758,598
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 438,095 $ 22680045 § 1,762,851 $ 498,085
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2062
(With Comparative Amounts for June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:
Operating Loss 3 (558,913) $ 329,191
Adjustments 1o Reconcile Operating Income (loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
{Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds - 314,132
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid ltems - 281,236
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 654,573 (89,294)
Total Adjustments 654,573 506,074
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 95,660 835,265
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received 26,835 50,309
Insurance Proceeds 163,710 315,718
Sale of Investments 1,242,798 -
Purchase of Investments (1,386,064) (1,242,798)
Net Cash Provided by (used in) Investing Activities 47,279 (876,771)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 142,939 (41,506)
Cash, July 1 60,000 101,506
Cash, June 30 $ 2029839 % 60,000

Supplemental Disclosure on Non-Cash Investing Activities:

The City adjusts the purchase of investments to reflect the $11,721 increase in the fair value of

investments.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
Trust Funds

Expendable Trust Funds

Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a
trustee capacity.

Cemetery Fund
Established to account for monies received as

contributions for the maintenance of Resthaven
Cemetery located within the City limits.






CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
CEMETERY EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assels
investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved For Cemetery Maintenance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance
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2002

2001

9,710

8,710

2,308

2,308

7,402

9,710




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
CEMETERY EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended June 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Revenues: Budget Actual (Unfavorabie) Actual
Interest Earnings $ 475 % 294 § (181) & 561
Expenditures:
Administration 475 - 475 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Expenditures Qver (Under)
Revenues - 294 294 561
Other Financing Uses - (7,696} (7.,696) -
Operating Transfer Out
Total Other Financing Uses - (7,696) (7,696) -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Uses - (7.402) (7,402} 561
Fund Balance, July 1 7,402 7,402 - 6,841
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 7402 § - $ 294 $ 7.402
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets

The General Fixed Assets Account Group - established to
account for the cost of all fixed assets of the City that are used
in the performance of general government functions which are
not accounted for in the Enterprise Funds.






CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

June 30, 2002

lmprovements
Other than
Function and Activity Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
General Government $ 5,704,150 3 1,932,050 3 528,104 $ 757,533 $ 8,921,837
Public Safety:
Poiice 94,844 4,726,489 1,620 3,787,582 8,610,535
Fire 323,566 5,191,309 - 3,461,750 8,976,625
Total Public Safety 418,410 9,917,798 1,620 7,249,332 17,587,160
Engineering and Public Works 1,765,199 1,543,114 42,369 1,750,195 5,100,877
Cutture and Recreation 10,355,767 11,924,323 6,925,034 1,256,742 30,461,866

Total General Fixed Assets $ 18,243,526 $ 25317.285 §  7,497.127 $ 11,013,802 § 62,071,740
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GECRGIA

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCE

June 30, 2002 and 2001

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

Land

Buildings

Improvements Cther than Buildings
Equipment

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

INVESTMENTS IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
General Fund
Special Revenue

Other Governmental Funds

TOTAL INVESTMENTS IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
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2002 2001
$ 18,243,526 § 16,723,526
25,317,285 23,213,763
7,497,127 7,254,657
11,013,802 11,107,790
$ 62,071,740  § 58,299,736
$ 13876397 § 13,970,227
965,594 163,415
47,229,349 44,166,094
$ 62,071,740 $ 58,299,736




l CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
I Year Ended June 30, 2002
General Fixed General Fixed
l Assels Assets
Function and Activity July 1, 2001 Additions Detetions June 30, 2002
I General Govemment $ 5963508 $ 3,318,666 L3 360,337 % 8,921,837
Public Safety;
Police 7,680,567 966,688 36,720 8,610,535
I Fire 8,974,278 76,792 74,445 8,876,625
Total Public Safety 16,654,845 1,043,480 111,165 17,587,160
l Public Works 5,181,278 104,950 185,351 5,100,877
Culture and Recreation 30,500,105 148,454 186,693 30,461,866
I Totai General Fixed Assets $ 58,299,736 $ 4615550 3 843 546 $ 62,071,740
1 .
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

Statistical Tables and Other Schedules
(unaudited)

Statistical Tables and Other Schedules are included to provide
detailed data on the physical, economic, social and political
characteristics of the City. They are intended to provide the
user with a broader and more complete understanding of the
City and its financial affairs than is possible from the basic
financial statements and supporting schedules included in the
Financial Section.







b/9'720'6¢
£00'684' LY
00¥'cL8'6¢
0/8'v95'pe
689'295'€E
0£2'989'/2
S8z'hze'ze
€L6'588'61
€Z1'196'61

000'gs0'tl

ielol

69€'26L'L
£61'eST'Y
9ee'LLY'g
852'500's
£50'48Y°L
6.0'82.'c
190'182'2
9e0'0LL'L
980'GLL'L

0o0'zee

SeNUsATY
BYO

BY6'ZOE'C $
L902zv'e ¢
ZLS'8L0'Y $
giz'oov'e ¢
zLl'oeL'z 3
volL'ese'y ¢
060'8/6'C §
ezL'eeL'T $
eL9'L08'C $

000'0E6'L $

EERIVELS
10} sabieyn

€28'241°1L ¢
L1e'gs6  $
goe'ely §
o8L'0LZ'e $
89.'68.'Z $
vi0'9ES'L ¢
186'529'L
00Z'6L¥'E ¢
195'822's §

ooo'co8

SonuaAay

reJUSWILIBA0D

-181U)

L8LEEV'L
9/9'861'C
056°285'Z
195'Ly9'Z
Zvi'vsl'e
660'L1S'C
1G2'€98'C
980'¥8L 1
£18'69Z'1
000'968

SEp
B 8suagn

SUVIA TYOSId NIL LSV
(1) 30HUNOS A8 SINNIATY TYLNINNYIAOD TYHINID

YIOHO0ID 'YLLAHYHATY 40 ALID

L25'9¢E6
988'897
085'cov
B662'22S
196'eSY
LE0'6YS
$6€'98¢€
Z6¥'9.2
LZb'sre

000'60¢

SOINYa}I0

§ seuly

$

0SZ'61€°0¢
¥18'288'67
v59'rLL'azZ
L¥8'859'61
€65'L62'91
ev2'960'v1L
100'981'Z1
9.£'96¥'01
€95'v¥9'6

000'66.'g

gaxe]

$

Spund 1sni ] 8jgepuadxg pue {eJUSWILISACS |[B sapnjaut (1)

rA¢lor4
Lgoz
gooz
6661
8661
1661
8661
G661
14518

€661

TEX
|eas!y

87




SPUNA Isn! L ajgepusdxg pue [euswuioncs) (e sapnjouy (1)

L08'9F0'9Y $ £12'894's 8€e'n88'oL $ z9g'L65'y $ z6e'as8'c § 892'€SL'LLS voL'vEL'E $ 200z
peLTTYY $ G60'€90'9 $ 0LL'ERO'LL $ 128'S/e'y $ veZ'0eL'e $ £12'880'01% 69€'L26'8 $ 00z
G61'09tL'6E § B£'0€9°G $ vP6 LOE' L § 012'909'¢ $ 990°L0t'y $ vi6'89%'L $ zer'iee'l ¢ 0002
080'825'9E $ 181'626's $ v82'625'01 $ SIY'IS6'T § BELLYEY $ ZSY'SLY'O § £SEYEZ'Y 6661

0Z¥'soL'ey ¢ ocL'ere'y ¢ gog'zov'Lz ¢ TAVAR A3 1E6'8LY'E § BOL'LEQ'S § cev'eey'y $ 8661 .

¥88°'009'L€ § 851'e0z'y $ 69€'956'cl $ £02'828'1L $ Zre'606'c ¢ BEE'099'Y $ PSY'Er0'y § L661 N
Lec'ere'e? ¢ S1S'v90'y $ vev've6'cL $ 982'96¢"L § BL1'€€9'C $ 6EL'6LE'E $ 820's€9't § 9661
i6g'sig'ee ¢ vve'68e's ¢ So6'ore’LL § Wy'liL 8 €LZ'6SL'T $ 80v'8.5'C $ 999'c80'e $ S661
l9S'EIL'TT 218l v06'9/8°LL $ LBISL  § 5€8'80€'C ¢ BEE'0LS'E $ SEC'PPe'L ¢ v661
000°'126'5L $ 000'956'L $ 000°1ST'L $ 000'8¥0'} $ 000°420T $ 000'9€'Z $ 000°0£9'L $ €661
IBEN ERNERRGE e RENO uonesIday SHIOMA BES DIqng JISWUIRACH Tegx
lenden pue siied algqng ([=AEIVETS) |east

SHV3A TVOSId NIL LSV
(1) NOILONNS A8 S3UNLIANIAXI TYINIWNYIAOD TvHINIO
VIDYOIO VLLIHYHATY 4O ALID




134 3y3 noyBnoiuy sjunodoe X} 0} 9peU SJUBLNSNIPE SSPNjUY [B10 1.

£2C « ¥BZ'98E ¢ ZE'L6 gE¥'coL'ol ¢ 168'692 ¢ LL'GB 8PS PE8'SL § 6/P'CPSOL $ Z00zZ

00'9 ¥96'086 ¢ 18101 ¥16'.69'9L $ gce'6ee'l 19'¢6 196°21E'G1 $ log'zse'ol $ 1002

00’6 65¥'08E'L $ 1810} G6Z'8E5'9L ¢ 200'00¢ ¢ 16601 682'8£2'91 $ 9gg'IEL'st $ 0002

£6'¢ g8’y 6L e¥F'e6s'olL ¢ (cvz'cz) $ £9'6L 989'€29'01} $ /59'0vE'C) $ 6661

000 - LL06 10£'€80'6 ¢ zov'icz % o¥'88 66Z'268'8 $ 206'900°0L $ 8661 o
=]

8.2 Zor'ice ¢ £5°66 L¥G'ose's & B65'¥0C $ 8816 Zy6'169°L $ civ'gze's $ 1661

g9'c 81004 ¢ 816 l80'892'9 % Pe'S9L §$ 51’68 £69°209'9 $ ZI5'90%L $ 9661

8¢°G orL'sic ¢ 66'66 ¥¥6'2L8's (0£g'¥1) $ ¥Z°001 vic'2e8's $ ole'eLR's $ G661

50’8 GsL'vor ¢ 86'G6 166'886's ¢ (Log'61) $ ££'96 819'865'S $ sor'oLL's $ ¥661

0001 000'ses  $ 19°66 000'¢Pe's ¢ 000'6€l ¢ 1216 000'v02's $ 000'05¢'S $ €661

AAFT SN, saxe] Ra SUQNS3|[0D SUORDINOD SEINET Ty} SUOMD3[[eN FAET ICEPY

10 Juasiad weanbujag aung jo xeJl xel Arg jo xe| Xej |eosi4

se xe| Buipuejsing Jus0lad sk jejol wanbuyag uaolad JauND 8o,
Juanbullag SUoRI3|I0D
Bupurisino el

SHVIA NIL LSy
SNOILO3TIOD ANV SIINTT XYL ALYIJONd
YIDHOID YLLIUYHATY JO ALID




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE
OF PROPERTY (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Estimated

Fiscal Tax Assessed Actual Assessment
Year Year Value Value Ratio
1993 1992 $ 447,000,000 $ 1,117,000,000 40
1994 1993 $ 532,000,000 $ 1,330,000,000 40
1985 1994 $ 586,826,325 $ 1,467,065,813 40
1996 1995 $ 1,058719,267 $ 2,646,798,168 40
1997 1996 $ 1,276,077,960 $ 3,190,194,900 40
1998 1997 $ 1,689,980,294 $ 4,224 950 735 40
1999 1998 $ 1,877,138,494 $ 4,692,846,235 40
2000 1999 $ 2,075,165,895 $ 5,187,914,737 40
2001 2000 $ 2,337,989,324 $ 5,844,973310 40
2002 2001 $ 2,504,417 397 3 6,261,043,493 40

(1) Assessed values are established by the Fulton County Assessment Board on January 1

of each year at 40% of actuai value.

SOQURCE: Fulton County Tax Assessors Office
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Land Acquisition/Capital Projects

During fiscal year 2002, over $6.4 million was cxpended on capital projects including land acquisition for
downtown parking, recreation/parks, and passive greenspace/entryway parks. Additionally, construction of a
joint Public Safety Training Facility was completed with the City of Roswell providing for training space and
structures for the Police and Fire Departments. Road/intersection improvements continued, as did the expansion
of the City’s sidewalk system. A city-wide emergency management siren system was installed to provide early
warnings of potentially hazardous storms.

For the future. The City continually updates its strategic plan for future growth, the most current year of
which channels into the current year's operating budget. This long range planning allows City officials to
commence planning for improvements in sufficient time to assure adequate financing and preparation.

Annexation

During fiscal year 2001 the City receiv.d an application for annexation which effectively doubles the size of the
City. Requiring voter approval, Council plans to address the request of the applicants as a priority in the near
future. Severa! studies continue with the economic impact of potential outcomes, as well as discussions with
Fulton County, who currently service the area.

Infrastructure Maintenance

Of significant priority of the Engineering/Public Works and Park/Recreation Departments is maintenance of
existing facilities and infrastructure. The City has invested over $33 million in capital project expenditures since
fiscal year 1996, which includes maintenance. Equating to over $5.5 million per year on average, system
maintenance/improvements allow services to be delivered effectively and efficiently to citizens. Through
proactive management of infrastructure maintenance, the City is able to maintain long-range plans on funding
requirements,

Strategic Planning
City Council appropriated funds to complete a comprehensive strategic plan which would provide detailed

cohesiveness between City departments. Currently strategic plans exist for Recreation, Community
Development, Transportation, etc. The future goals of the Council are to provide a more visionary thought to
planning on an enterprise-wide basis, thus the need to prepare such a plan was imminent. This project was not
completed as of June 30, 2002, and it is estimated to take significant time in order to complete the necessary
tasks to make this a successful project,

Accessible Government

Provided as an initiative from our Mayor, citywide efforts continue to improve the ways and means in which
citizens are provided information about the City. Specifically, those items which pettain to the quality of life
and are of utmost concern. Future changes possibly include citizen newsletters, broadcast ¢-mails, educational
programs, and updated web-site information.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Accounting System. The City maintains seven fund types: General Fund, Special Revenue, Capital
Projects, Debt Service, Enterprise, Internal Service, and Trust and Agency. The description of these fund types
can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The accompanying financial statements and statistical tables were prepared in conformance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and with standards set forth by:

1) The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

2) The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and its Committee on Governmental Accounting
and Auditing.

3) The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA).



Internal Controls. The City of Alpharetta management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internat control structure is designed to provide
reascnable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasenable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the vafuation
of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the City is responsible for ensuring that an adequate
internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. We believe the City's system of internal accounting controls is adequate to safeguard assets and
provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of transactions,

Budget Controls. In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by
the City's govemning body. Activities of all funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. Effective
budgetary control is achieved through general obligation bond provisions and impact fees for the debt service
fund. Project-fength financial plans are adopted for the bond construction and capital projects funds. Budgetary
control is achieved in the special revenue fund and expendable trust fund by limiting expenditures to revenues
received. The level of legal budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures may not exceed revenues)
is established at the department level for the General Fund and at the fund level for all other funds.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

General Government Functions. The Governmental Funds include the General, Special Revenue, Debt
Service, Capital Projects, and Expendable Trust Funds. The following schedule presents a summary for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2002, and the amount and percentages of change in relation to prior year revenues.

FY Increase Percent
2002 Percent {Decrease)  of Increase
Revenue Source Amount Of Total From 2001 (Decrease)
Property Taxes $17,594,368 4509% § 936454 49.13 %
Other Taxes 12,724,882 32.61 (505,078) 26.50
Licenses and Permits 1,433,757 3.67 (764,919) 40.13
Intergovernmental 1,177,823 3.02 219,512 (11.52)
Charges for Services 3,362,948 8.62 (59,119} (3.10)
Fines and Forfeitures 936,527 2.40 467,641 (24.53)
Impact Fees 722,324 1.85 (536,180} 28.13
Interest 900,746 2.31 (1,406,790) 73.80
Other 169,259 043 (257,765) 13.52
Total 339,022,674 _100.00% $(1,906,244)

The most significant increase in actual continved revenue sources was derived from Property Taxes.
Contributing the largest percent of total revenue, property taxes include ad valorem taxation for real, personal,
and motor vehicle property. Despite a millage rate reduction from 2001 of .402 mills, additional revenue
occurred due to the increased total assessment amount of the billable digest. The assessed value of all property
within Alpharetta grew from $2,337,989,324 in the prior fiscal year to $2,504,417,397 in fiscal year 2002, or
7.12 percent. Consistent with prior years, the City’s digest has grown at an incredibly accelerated rate due to a
substantial amount of commercial development since 1995. The City has reduced the total millage rate since
1993 by 3.082 mills.




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

L. Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the government fund that will pay it.
Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are reported in the general long-term debt account group. No expenditire is
reported for these amounts. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of the enterprise fund is recorded as an
expense and liability of the fund as the benefits accrue to employees. In accordance with governmental
accounting standards, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay
benefits.

M. Long-Term Obligations

The City reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-term debt account
group. Certain other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with current available
financial resources are alsc reported in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term debt and
other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds.

N. Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a
specific purpose. Reservations of retained earnings are limited to outside third-party restriction.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The
proprietary funds contributed capital represents equity acquired through capital grants and capital
contributions from developers, customers or their funds.

Q. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2001 financial statements to conform with the 2002
presentation.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTARBILITY

A. Budeetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds except for those capital project funds (Bond II and Bond III Funds), which adopt
project-length budgets and except for the proceeds from capital leases and the related capital outlay, which
are not budgeted. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

Starting in January of each year, all City departments and agencies submit requests for appropriations to the
Director of Finance so that a budget may be prepared. The Budget Review Committee reviews budget
requests, justifications and recommendations after their submittal. The Mayor, City Administrator and
Director of Finance present a Recommended Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1 to the City
Council, which includes the recommended expenditures and estimated revenues to finance these
expenditures. A public hearing is held and the Mayor and City Council legally adopt the budget at the
regular June meetings. Georgia law requires a balanced budget.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund except for the General Fund, which is prepared, by fund and
department. The City’s department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department with
the approval of the City Administrator and the Director of Finance. Transfers of appropriations between
departments or amounts which would increase or decrease total department appropriations require City
Council approval. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level for all funds except the General
Fund, which is at the department level with the above provisions. Budgetary amounts shown on the
budget-to-actual comparison in the accompanying financial statements are stated as revised per the budget
resolution dated and adopted February 4, 2002 in the amount of $486,732. Budgets for the proprietary
funds are adopted for management control purposes only. Accordingly, budgets for the Enterprise Fund
are not reported herein.

B. Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders,
contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during he
subsequent year.

The following schedule reconciles the amounts of the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) to the amounts on the Combined Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance:
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

D. Fund Receivables and Payables

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Receiving Fund Paywng Fund
General Fund Special Revenue - Hotel Motel

E. Long-Term Debt

1. Changes in Long-Term Debt

Amount

$ 76,580

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt as shown in the General Long-Term Debt

Account Group for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Retirements
1998 General Obligation Bonds $ 24,825,000 $ - § (570,000
1998 Georgta State/Development
Authority Note Payable 1,707,750 - (66,000)
1995-A General Obligation Bonds 13,945,000 (610,000)
1995-B General Obligation Bonds 1,575,000 - (275,000)
1992 General Obligation Bonds 13,295,000 - {1,000,000)
Obligations Under Capital Leases 912,524 - {456,714)
Compensated Absences Payable 775.975 7.930 -
$ 57,036,249 $__ 7930 $.(2977714)
32

Balance

June 30, 2002
$ 24,255,000

1,641,750
13,335,000
1,300,000
12,295,000
455,810

783,905

$__54,066,465



CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City maintains two enterprise funds. Segment information for these funds for the year ended June 30,

2002, 15 shown below:
Water and
Sewer Solid Waste Total

Operating revenue $ 3925070 $§ 1,622,493 $ 5,547,563
Operating expense (other than

depreciaticn) 3,817,215 1,659,048 5,476,263
Depreciation 226,831 - 226,831
Operating loss 118,976 36,555 155,531
Nonoperating income 36,746 11,985 48,731
Nonoperating expense 93,084 - 93,084
Capital contributions - - -
Transfers in - 175,000 175,000
Net income (loss) (175,314) 150,430 (24,884)
Fixed asset additions 44,805 - 44,805
Net working capital 154,980 498,312 653,292
Total assets 7,104,142 675,778 7,779,920
Bonds payable, net 1,995,000 - 1,995,000
Total equity 4,214,723 498,312 4,713,035

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION

A. Commitments and Contingencies

The City has contracted with Browning-Ferris Industries, Inc. for refuse collection, including recycling,
until March 31, 2005.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, the City believes that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition of the City.

In conjunction with the issuance of the revenue bonds by the Development Authority of Alpharetta
("Authority") for the purpose of benefiting the Georgia State University Foundation (“Foundation”), the

City is liable for the repayment of the revenue bond in the event of default by either the Authority or the
Foundation.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

B. Risk Management

The Risk Management Internal Service fund includes medical, worker’s compensation, property and general
liability insurance coverages. Medical insurance premiums and life insurance policy premiums are charged
to departments and to employees for optional dependent coverage benefits. The purpose of this fund is to
pay medical claims of the City employees and their covered dependents and minimize the total cost of
annual medical insurance to the City. Medical claims exceeding $696,000 in the aggregate per year are
insured through a private insurance carrier. Worker’s compensation claims exceeding $200,000 per incident
arc insured through private insurance carrier {up to a maximum of $875,000), whereas claims below the
$200,000 are paid from this fund. Liability claims exceeding $10,000 are insured through a private
insurance carrier, where as liability claims below the $10,000 are paid from this fund. It is the City’s
intention to maintain an equity balance of $1,000,000 to cover catastrophic claims of workers’
compensation and medical insurance.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. There were no significant reductions to insurance coverage in the prior year and the
amount of settlements during the last three fiscal years did not exceed insurance coverage. Changes in the
balances of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:

2002 2001
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 225242 $ 314,536
Incurred claims 2,223,781 1,032,772
Claims payments 1,569,208 1,122,066
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $__879.815 $__ 225242
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for all of the general
revenues of the City not specifically levied or collected for
other City funds, and for the expenditures related to the
rendering of general services by the City. The General Fund is
used to account for all resources not required to be accounted
for in another fund.






CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GECRGIA

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

GENERAL FUND

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Receivabies (net of aliowance for uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts
Due from other funds
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid items

Total Assets
Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and expenses
Compensated absences payable
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Reserved:
Reserved for Inventory
Reserved for Prepaid Items
Reserved for Encumbrances

Unreserved
Designated for Operations
Designated for Special Projects
Unreserved and Undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabiiities and Fund Balance

44

2002 2001
$ 783,114 5 160,614
11,193,099 10,272,579
1,848,597 2,136,700
374,214 57,628
76,580 2,308
163,279 156,868
38,248 10,724
$ 14477131 $§ 12,797,421
$ 1,303,998 $ 971,087
278,949 265,649
486,621 321,984
291,850 889,557
2,361,418 2.448,277
163,279 156,869
38,248 10,724
168,830 268,155
5,009,100 5,397,835
2,057,962 -
4,688,285 4,515,561
12,115,713 10,349,144
$ 14,477,131 $ 12797421




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND l
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 l
2002 2001 I
Revenues: I
Property Taxes $ 12345201 $ 11,029,650
Cther Taxes 10,506,323 10,771,690
Licenses and Permits 1,433,757 2,198,676
Intergovernmental 783,227 575,542 l
Charges for Services 2,233,082 2,383,864
Fines and Forfeitures 835,903 461,096
Investment Earnings 319,051 563,548
Other 96,659 156,404 I
Total Revenues 28,553,203 28,140,470
Expenditures: l
Current:
General Government:
City Administrator 951,025 808,351
Mayor and Council 166,942 209,829 I
Legal Services 290,202 354,526
Municipal Court 340,242 276,419
Financial Services 860,024 797,266
Technology Services 896,377 914,420 I
Community Development 1,511,275 1,406,785
Human Resources : 590,927 457 571
Non-Departmental 20,000 112,260 l
Total General Government 5,627,014 5,337,427
Public Safety:
Fire & Rescue Services 5,016,288 4,608,123
Police Services 5,244,069 4,576,725 l
Total Public Safety 10,260,357 9,184 848
Engineering & Public Works 3,858,352 3,730,234
Environmental Services 352,538 320,794
Parks and Recreation 4,591,862 4,375,821 I
Total Expenditures 24,690,123 22,958,124
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures 3,863,080 5,182,346
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of Assets 379,993 2,526
Operating Transfers In 7.606 -
Operating Transfers Out (2,484,200) (3.390,149) I
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,096,511) (3.387,623)
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Uses 1,766,569 1,794,723 I
Fund Balance, July 1 10,349,144 8,554,421
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 12115713 $ 10,349,144 l
5 1|







CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GECRGIA

FLEET MANAGEMENT FUND
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assets 2002 2001
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 132171 § 2,929
Investments 218,602 101,960
Total Assets $ 350773 $ 104,889

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . $ 400 3% 2,909
Total Liabilities 400 2,909
Fund Balance:
Unreserved:
Designated for Fleet Management 350,373 101,980
Total Fund Balance 350,373 101,980
Total Liabifities and Fund Balance $ 350773 3% 104,889
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

FLEET MANAGEMENT FUND
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the year Ended June 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Actual Variance
{Budget Favorabie
Budget Basis) (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Investment Eamings 5 15,000 ] 6,729 3 (8,271) 3 28,190
Other Income - 335,036 335,036 21,605
Total Revenues , 15,000 341,765 326,765 49,795
Expenditures:
Capital Outlay - 284,070 362,443 (78,373) 878,221
Capital Lease:
Principal 35,188 35,188 - 19,787
Interest 4,942 4,941 1 4,192
Total Expenditures 324,200 402,572 (78,372) 902,200
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Qver
{Under) Expendiiures {309,200} {60,807) 248,393 (852,405)
Other Financing Scurces (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 309,200 309,200 - 173,348
Capital Lease Proceeds . - - 260,089
Total Other Financing Saurces (Uses) 308,200 309,200 - 433,438
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses - 248,393 248,393 (418,967)
Fund Balance, July 1 101,980 101,980 - 520,947
Fund Balance, Jung 30 3 101,980 $ 350,373 3 248,393 § 101,880
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Funds are used to account for City operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The intent of the City in using this type of
fund is to see that the costs (expenses, including depreciation)
of providing these services to the general public on a
continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through
user charges.

Water System Fund

Established to account for the operation of the City’s water
system, a self-supporting activity which renders services on a
user charge basis to residents and businesses located in
Alpharetta.

Solid Waste Fund

Established to account for the operation of the City’s solid

. waste system. Included within this fund is the Operation

of curbside garbage, recycling, and yard waste programs.
These programs are a self - supporting activity which render
‘services on a user charge basis to residents in Alpharetta.






CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2002

{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 3,925,070 $ 4,090,382
Operating Expenses:
Operation and Maintenance:
Billing 401,620 270,347
Operations 3,415,595 3,633,335
Depreciation 226,831 281,206
Total Operating Expenses 4,044 046 4,084,888
Operating Income (Loss) (118,976) 5,494
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings 36,746 94,469
Interest Expense {83,084) (118,140}
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (56,338) {23,671)
Net Loss {175,314) (18,177)
Retained Earnings, July 1 2,009,920 2,028,097
Retained Earnings, June 30 $ 1,834,606 $ 2,009,920
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEQRGIA

WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2002

(With Comparative Amounts for June 30, 2001)

Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities:
Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation Expense
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
({Increase) Decrease in Inventories
Increase {Decrease) in Accounts Payable
increase (Decrease) in Deposits Payable
Increase {Decrease} in Accrued Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interest Paid
Acquisition and Construction of Fixed Assets
Principal Payment - Capital Loan and Promissory Notes
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received
Sale of Investments
Purchase of Investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Net Increase in Cash

Cash, July 1

Cash, June 30

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at
end of year to amounis on balance sheet

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total

Supplemental Disciosure on Non-Cash Investing Activities:

The fair value of investments increased by $1,204.
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2002 2001
$ (118,976) $ 5,494
226,831 281,206
(44,052) 192,208

1,470 27,644
(96,833) 239 546
111,049 66,698
12,106 11,938
- (10,660)
210,571 808,580
91,595 814,074
(93,084) (118,140}
(44,805) {418,200)
(177.627) (165.701)
(315,516) (702,041)
35,542 94,469
822,808 1,045,722
(76,937 (822.808)
781,413 317,383
557,492 420 416
1,135,402 705,986

$ 1692894 $ 1,135.402
$ 163,125 § 14,452
1,520,769 1,120,950

$ 1692894 $  1,135.402




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
Internal Service Fund

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing
of goods or services provided by one department or agency

to other departments or agencies of a govenment, or to other
governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Risk Management Fund

This fund is used to account for property, liability, worker’s
compensation, life and health insurance benefits provided to
City departments, City employees and participating
dependents.







CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES {N RETAINED EARNINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2002
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001}

2002 2001
Operating Revenues: $ 3,265,594 $ 2,998,925
Operating Expenses:
Operating ' 122,281 53,270
Benefits and Claims 3,702,226 2,616,464
Total Operating Expenses 3,824,507 2,669,734
Operating Income (Loss) (558,913) 329,191
Non-cperating Revenues {Expenses):
Interest Income 38,556 50,309
Insurance Proceeds 163,710 315,718
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 202,266 366,027
Net Income {Loss) (356,647) 695,218
Retained Earnings, July 1 1,077,556 382,338
Retained Eamings, June 30 $ 720,909 $ 1,077,556
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio of
Debt Service
Total fo General
Total General Govemmental
Fiscal Debt Governmental Charges for
Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures Services
1993 $ 205,000 1,350,903 $ 1,555903 $ 15,920,704 9.77
1994 $ 420,000 1,341,177 $ 1,761,177 $ 22,113,561 7.96
1995 $ 660,000 1,323,428 $ 1,983,428 $ 22,815,597 8.69
1996 $ 1,370,000 2,123,829 $ 3,493,829 $ 28,643,331 12.20
1997 $ 1,440,000 2,085,139 $ 3,525,139 $ 31,600,884 11.16
1998 $ 1,520,000 2,006,378 $ 3,526,378 $ 42,165,420 8.36
1999 $ 1,595,000 3,249,055 $ 4,844,055 $ 36,528,080 13.26
2000 $ 1,690,000 3,007,494 S 4,697,494 $ 39,736,185 11.82
2001 $ 1,901250 3,440,501 $ 5,341,751 $ 43,597,846 12.25
2002 $ 2,521,000 2,410,756 $ 4,931,756 $ 46,045,801 10.71
Note: Includes all Governmental Funds
Source: City Financial Services Department
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Estimated Number of Number of Value of
Fiscal Actual Building Permits Permits
Year Property Value Permits Issued ._% Change Issved
1893 446,724,000 529 14.25 % 117,967,000
1994 532,000,000 801 5142 % 117,607,974
1995 586,826,325 835 424 % 172,713,513
1996 796,345,466 981 17.49 % 281,265,077
1997 958,232,044 1,210 2334 % 324,785,863
1998 1,151,232,400 1,448 19.75 % 387,728,080
1999 1,489,759,756 1,351 (6.76) % 379,236,535
2000 1,691,937,704 1,230 {8.96) % 390,391,126
2001 2,337,989,324 1,184 (3.74) % 395,062,028
2002 2,504,417,397 654 (44.76) % 194,086,854

Source: City Building Inspections Department
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

MISCELLANEOUS AND DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

June 30, 2002

Date of Incorporation: 1858

Date First Charter Adopted: 1858

Date Present Charter Adopted: July 1, 1981

Form of Government: Mayor and City Council

Population: (Source: City of Alpharetta Community Development Department)
Fljlton County Population (inctuding City):

Median Age

Median Income

Area: (Source: City Community Development Department)

Total Number of City Employees

Bond Rating: Moaody's investor Service
Standard & Poor's

Miles of Streets: (Source: City Engineering & Public Waorks Department)
Streets - Paved
Streets - Unpaved

Miles of Sewer:

36,079 (estimate)
781,152 (approximate)
34
$71,207
22 square miles
362
AaZ2

AA

260 miles
2 miles

Sanitary None - Service provided by County

Drainage - Piped
Drainage - Open

Fire Protection: (Source: City Fire Department)
Number of Stations
Number of Employees
Insurance Services Office (ISO) Fire Classification

Major Employers: (Source: North Fulton Chamber of Commerce)

AT&T
Equifax
MCI

97

35 miles
143 miles

78

Number of

Employees

3,434
1,150
1,000
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Local Option Sales Tax, a tax collected at the point of sale and distributed via the State of Georgia Department of
Revenue, experienced a downturn of 7% for the year, equating to $246,435.39. The City designated $1,675,000
of Fund Balance in the General Fund due to the potential discontinuance of this tax during fiscal year 2003.
Municipalities and Counties within the State of Georgia agree upon distribution percentages of the tax every ten
years, concurrent with the census cycles. [f agreements are not reached, the tax is negated, requiring
municipalities and counties to find alternative funding sources. Calendar year 2002 represents the negotiation
period for the distribution agreement expiring in 2012,

Alpharetta has experienced an average increase in the property tax base of 22.67% over the last nine years.
Projections for fiscal year 2003 have the digest exceeding $2.7 billion in assessments, a phenomenal increase
frorr_l the $7.4 million assessed in 1995, Further, with collection rates well into the 90% range, this revenue
source continues to have a significant impact on the City through revenues in the General and Debt Service
Funds.

Businesses created an estimated 3,754 new jobs during the fiscal year. Primarily office/professional positions,
the City continues to have a population which doubles during the day due to incoming commuter traffic to
professional office parks and retail centers. During the same period, 80 new commercial building permits were
issued totaling an approximately $142,907,706 in value.

Looking ahead, the City is taking advantage of refunding opportunities associated with General Obligation Debt,
and continuing conservative management of fiscal resources. Additionally, based upon City Council’s initiative,
alternative funding sources are being explored with the expansion of a grant applications and identification of
state/federal funding opportunities.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the year. In order to keep pace with the tremendous growth being experienced, the City designed plans
to increase the effectiveness and efficiency of the City's operations while maintaining a strong customer service
ethic, Some of the most significant of these are outlined below:

Emplovee Retention
Beginning in calendar year 2001, the City began to track employee retention/turnover rates in an entity-wide

movement to reduce expenses associated with new hires. A total of 32 employees left employment during the
year, representing 9.5% of the total workforce. Additionally, the total number of vacant positions at year-end
was 22. Monthly turnover rates varied from a low of no turnover in July and December 2041, to a high of 6, or
1.852% in August of 2001.

Employee Educational Programs
" The City identified the need to address the ability for employees to have access to higher education programs

through their employer. A program providing associates and bachelors degrees in Criminal Justice and Fire
Science was implemented through a local technical college and university. Nearly 20% of the City’s employees
took advantage of the program. Future goals include the expansion of the degree possibilities with a projected
enrollment of 100 employees. Costs are covered entirely by the state funded HOPE scholarship program.

Public Involvement/Communication

Continuing an effort established as the result of a failed general obligation bond referendum in fiscal year 2001,
City Council contracted with an outside firm to complete a comprehensive survey. The primary objective was to
gain a better understanding from the citizens of what the needs of the City are. Using direct mail and telephone
methods, 2,176 citizens were contacted, representing 19.6% of the households in the City. Road and traffic
improvements/expansion, coupled with parks and sidewalk construction were the top responses for capital
improvements. Of those surveyed, 47% were male, 51% female, and 2% did not respond to the question.
Approximately 48% had annual incomes of $100,000 per year or more, and 34% were 40 years of age or older.




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Year Ended June 30, 2002

Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided (Used} by Operating Activities

Degpreclation Expense
Increase in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Inventories
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase in Deposits Payable
Increase in Accrued Liabilities

Total Adjustments
Met Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interest Paid
Acquisition and Construction of Fixed Assets
Principal Payment - Capital Loan Promissaory Notes
Qperating transfer in

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activilies

Cash Flows from investing Activities;

Interest Received

Insurance Proceeds

Sale of Investiments

Purchase of Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash
Cash, July 1

Cash, June 30

Supptemental Disclosure on Non-Cash Investing Activities:

Component
Unit
Total Development
Internal {Memarandum Authority of
Enterprise Service Only) Alpharetta
$ 185531 § (658,913) & (403,382) % -
226,831 - 226,831 -
(66.402) - (66,402) -
1,470 - 1,470 -
(49,881) 654,573 604,592 -
111,049 - 111,049 -
12,106 - 12,106 -
235,073 854,573 850,646 -
79,542 95,660 175,202 -
{93,084) - (93,084) (370,732}
{44,805) - {44,805) .
(177.627) - (177.627) -
175,000 - 175,000 -
{140,516) - {140,516} {370,732)
43,773 26,835 70,608 370,732
- 163,710 163,710 -
1,025,469 1,242,798 2,268,267 -
(398,434) {1,386,084) (1.784,498) -
670,808 47,278 718,087 370,732
609,834 142,939 782,773 . -
1,158,430 50,000 1,218,430 -
$ 1,768,264 § 202,939 § 1971203 % -

The fair value of investments increased by $4,958 in the Emterprise Fund and $11,721 in the Intemal Service Fund.

The accompanying notes to the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

G. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/ Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds such as
expenditures or transfers of resources of services, debt or construction. These receivables and payables are
not eliminated and are classified as “due from other funds” or "due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

H. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in
order to provide an understanding of changes in the City’s financial position and operations.

1. Total Columns on Combined Statements — Overview

Columns on the accompanying combined financial statements captioned "Memorandum Only” indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns does not present financial
position, or results of operations in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is
such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of
this data.

J. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the same date. The property
taxes attach as an enforceable lien also on January 1. Tax notices are mailed on or about October 1 and are
payable 60 days from billing date, at which time the tax becomes delinquent and penalties and interest are
assessed. The City bills and collects its own property taxes.

K. Local Option Sales Taxes

The City receives a percentage of a 1% local option sales tax levied on all retail sales made within Fulton
County. The proceeds of such tax collected each year are used to reduce, on a dollar-for-dollar basis, an
equivalent amount of property taxes, which would otherwise be required to be levied in the subsequent
year.

25




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

E. Long-Term Debt - Continued

6. Notes Payable - Continued

The annual requirements to amortize the note payable to the Development Authority for the City’s share
(16.5%) of the bonds as of June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2003 $ 68475 $ 70,753 $ 139,228
2004 70,950 68,121 139,071
2005 74,250 65,344 139,594
2006 76,725 62,419 139,144
2007 30,025 59,342 139,367
Thereafter 1,271,325 387,848 1,659,173

Total $1,641,750 $_713,827 $.2,355,577

F. Reserved and Designated Fund Balances

Reserved and designated fund balances in the various funds are as follows:

Special Debt Capital
Reserved for General Revenue Service Projects
Inventory $ 163,279 § - 8 - 3 -
Prepaid items 38,248 - - -
Encumbrances 158,839 8,979 - 2,855,080
Capital and community
improvement projects - 1,398,716 - -
Public safety - - - -
Debt Service - - 2,260,946 -
Total $ 360,366 $ 1,407,695 $ 2,260,946 $ 2,855,080
Capital Special
Designated for General Projects Revenue
Operations $ 5,009,100 % - $ 179,978
Fleet management - 350,373 -
Capital projects - 10,333,545 -
Special Projects 2,057,962 - -
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

C. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

1. Plan Description

As authorized by City Council, the City provides retirement, disability and death benefits to its employees
through the City’s defined benefit pension plan, known as the City of Alpharetta Retirement Plan (the
"Plan"). The City’s plan is affiliated with the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (“System™), an
agent multiple-employer public retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative
agent for the cities in the State of Georgia.

All full-time City employees, City officials and the judge of Municipal court are eligible to participate in the
System. Benefits vest after five years of service. City employees who retire at or after age 65 (55 for the
police and firemen) with 5 years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to a split percent 1% to 2% of their highest five year average salary
during employment. City officials and the municipal court judges receive a lifetime benefit at age 65 of $25
per month for each year of service to the City. There is no waiting period to become eligible to participate
in the plan for City officials and the municipal court judges. These benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by City Council. The Georgia Municipal Association issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for GMEBS.
That report may be obtained by writing to Georgia Municipal Association, Risk Management and
Employee Benefit Services, 201 Pryor Street, SW, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 or by calling (404) 688-0472.

2. Funding Policy
Participants are not required 1o contribute to the Plan. The City’s policy is to contribute 100% of the

amount necessary to fund the Plan according to the annual actuarial calculations. The City currently
contributes 7.7% of covered payroll,

3. Annual Pension Cost

The City’s annual pension cost for 2002 of $801,437 was equal to the City’s recommended and actual
contributions. The recommended contribution was computed as part of an actuarial valuation performed
as of January 1, 2002, using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets
of 8 percent a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.0 percent a year for inflation
compounded annually plus a graduated increase for merit or seniority ranging from 0.0 percent to 3.0
percent. The actuarial value of plan assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over ten years. This plan does not provide for
postretirement benefit increases. The plan’s period for amortizing the initial unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is 30 years from 1982. Current changes in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability are amortized
over 15 years for actuarial gains and losses, 20 years for plan provision changes and 30 years for actuarial
assumptions and cost methods as a percentage of payroll. Amortization periods are closed for the current
year.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

C. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Continued

3. Annua] Pension Cost - Continued

30years for actuarial assumptions and cost methods as a percentage of payroll. The amortization periods,
if applicable, are closed for this plan year.

4. Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net
Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal year ending June 30 Cost (AP Contributed Obligation
1998 $ 252,785 100% -
1999 $ 300,634 100% -
2000 $ 531,861 100% -
2001 $ 647,319 100% -
2002 $ 801,437 100% -

5. Schedule of Fund Progress

The information presented below is based on the annual January 1 actuarial valuations.

ﬁ---_---

2002 2001 2000 1599 1998 1997
Actuarial value of assets 3 6,502,639 $ 5462900 5 4,688,370 $ 4,056,546 § 3,142.858 § 2,651,334
Actuarial accrued liabilities $ 8,385,510 $ 7,050,281 § 5513888 % 4,402,166 $% 3,459,228 § 2,898,665
Funded ratio 77.5% 77.5% 85.0% 96.5% 90.9% 91.5% I
Total unfounded actuarial liability
(funding excess) $ 1,882871 3§ 1,587,381 % 825518 3 147,620 § 316,370 § 247,331
Annual covered payroll $ 10,423,331 § 9,113,462 7,134366 §$ 6,274,597 § 4,796,176 $ 4,166,784
Ratio of unfounded (excess) I
to annual covered payroll 18.1% 17.4% 11.6% 2.4% 6.6% 5.9%
41 l




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

D. Hotel-Motel/Motel Lodging Tax

During the year ended June 30, 2002, the City levied a 6% lodging tax. The Official Code of Georgia
Annotated 48-13-50 requires that all lodging taxes levied in excess of 3% be expended or obligated
contractually for the promotion of tourism, conventions or trade shows; 16 2/3% is utilized to promote
business within the downtown business district. The Alpharetta Convention and Visitors Bureau and the
Alpharetta Business Community have certified that the funds received from the City during the year ended
June 30, 2002 were used for, or are planned to be used for, the intended purpose as outlined within the
Official Code of Georgia. A summary of transactions is as follows:

Tax collections $2,218,559
Disbursements for Tourism $2,218,559

E. Joint Venture

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Metropolitan Atlanta
Georgia area, is a member of the Atlanta regional Commission (ARC) and is required to pay annual dues
thereto. Membership in ARC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-
8-34, which provides for the organization structure of ARC. ARC Board membership includes the chief
elected official of each county and municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member
governments are liable for any debts or obligations of ARC. Separate financial statements maybe obtained
from ARC, 200 North Creek, Suite 300, 3715 Northside Parkway, Atlanta, Georgia 30327,

NOTE 6 - NET INVESTMENT AND DIRECT FINANCING LEASE

The Development Authority of Alpharetta has entered into a lease agreement with the Georgia State
University Foundation to construct an education facility. The lease was accounted for asa direct financing
lease by the Development Authority of Alpharetta. The lease agreement requires monthly payments be
made on or before the twentieth day of each month for a sum equal to 83.5% of one-twelfth the amount
required as payment for the following year over the 20-year term of the bond.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities by the City except for
those accounted for in the Enterprise Funds.

General Capital Projects Fund

This fund is used to account for the acquisition of capital

expenditures greater than $25,000 funded by sources other
than General Obligation Bond proceeds.

Fleet Management Fund

This fund is used to account for the acquisition of capital
expenditures for new and replacement of the City fleet.

Bond 11 Construction Fund

This fund is used to account for capital projects funded from
1995 General Obligation Bond proceeds.

Bond I1I Construction Fund

This fund is used to account for capital projects funded from
1998 General Obligation Bond proceeds.



CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GECRGIA
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
(With Comparative Totals for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001)

General
Capitat Fieel Bond Il Band #It Totals
Projects Management Construction Cortruction 2002 2001
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 3 59560 $ 335036 § - 3 . § 384596 $ 382,769
Investment Earnings 229,388 6,729 - 203054 439,151 1,472,687
Other 59,068 - 13,572 - 72.540 52,155
Total Revenuas 347,996 341,765 13,572 203,054 906,387 1,907,611
Expendituras;
Capitat Outlay 6,400,527 362,443 36,774 4,080,594 10,830,338 11,043,110
Debt Service
Principal - 35,188 - - 35,188 19,787
Interest - 4941 - - 4,941 4,192
Total Expenditures 6,400 527 402,572 36,774 4,080,594 10,820,467 11,067 089
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {6,052,531) {60,807} {23.202) (3,877,540) (10,014,080} (&.159,478)
Other Financing Sourcaes (Uses):
QOperating Transfers in 2,000,000 309,200 895,936 - 2,405,136 2,960,349
Qperating Transfers Out {1,323,308) - - {95,936) - (1,419,244 -
Capital Lease Proceeds - - - - - 260,089
Totai Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 676,692 308,200 95,936 (95,936} 985,882 3,220,438
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses {5,375,839) 248,393 72,734 {3,973,476) {9.028,188) {5,939,040)
Fund Balance, July 1 9,668,243 101,980 (72.734) 12,849,697 22567186 - 28,503,226
Fund Balance, June 30 § 4312404 3 350,373 § - 3 8,676,221 $ 13,538,998 § 22,564,186
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEQRGIA
GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended June 30, 2002
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001
Variance
: Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabie) Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 696,452 $ 58,560 $ (636,892) § 382,769
Investment Eamings 350,000 229,368 (120,632) 588,811
Other - 59,068 58,068 30,550
Total Revenues 1,046 452 347,996 (698,456) 1,002,130
Expenditures: _
Capital Outlay 10,607,998 £,400,527 4,207,471 5,068,687
Total Expenditures 10,607,998 6,400,527 4,207 471 5,068,687
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures (9,561,546} {6,052,531) 3,508,015 (4,066,557)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In : 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 2,787,000
Operating Transfers Out {1,323,308) (1,323,308) - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 676,692 676,692 - 2,787,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over (Under}
Expenditures and Other Uses (8,884,854) {5,375,839) 3,509,015 {1,279,557)
Fund Balance, July 1 9,688,243 9,688,243 - 10,967,800
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 803,389 % 4312404 $ 3,509,015 § 9683,243
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

BOND Il CONSTRUCTION
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Liabiiities and Fund Balance

Liabikities:
Accounts Payabie
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Unreserved, Designated for Capital Projects

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

65

2002

2001

72,742

72,742

(72,734)




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2002

Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities:
Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense
Increase ir Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Inventories
Increase {Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase in Deposits Payable
Increase in Accrued Liabilities
Decrease in Due to Other Funds

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Retated Financing Activities:
Interest Paid
Agquisition and Construction of Fixed Assets
Principal Payment - Capital Loan and Promissory Notes
Operating transfer in
Net Cash Used by Capital and Refated Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received
Sale of Investments
Purchase of Invesiments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by investing Activities
Net Increase in Cash
Cash, July 1
Cash, June 30

Recongiliation of cash and cash equivalents at
end of year to amounts on balance sheet

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Tolat

Supplemental Disclasure on Non-Cash lnvesting Activities:

The fair value of investments increased by $4,958.

Totals
Water Solid Waste 2002 2001
5 (118,976} § (36,555) §$ {185,531) § {84,359)
226,831 - 226,831 281,206
(44,052) {22,350) (66.,402) (60,509)
1,470 - 1,470 27,644
(96,833) 48,852 {49,981) 370,160
111,049 - 111,049 66,698
12,1086 - 12,106 11,938
_ - - {10,660)
210,571 24,502 235073 686,387
91,595 (12,053 79,542 602,028
{93,084) - (93,084) (118,140}
{44,805) - (44 B05) (418,200)
(177,627) - {177.627) (165,701)
- 175,000 175,000 429,800
{315,516) 175,000 {140,516) {272,241}
35,542 8,231 43,773 102,404
822,808 202,661 1,025,469 1.045722
(76.937) (321.497) {398,434 (1.025,469)
781,413 (110,605) 670,808 122,657
557,492 52,342 608,834 452,444
1,135,402 23,028 1,158,430 705,986
5 1692894 § 75370 § 1,768,264 % 1,158,430
$ 238,495 % 37,480
1,529,769 1,120,950
3 1,768,284 § 1,158,430
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Year Ended Jfune 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001 )

2002 2001
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 1622493 $ 1,434,537
Operating Expenses:
Operation and Maintenance:
Billing ' 19,089 11,859
Operations 1,639,959 1,512,531
Total Operating Expenses 1,659,048 1,524,390
Operating Income (36,555) (89,853)
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Eamings 11,985 7,935
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 11,885 7,935
Loss before operating transfers (24,570) {81,918)
Operating transfers in 175,000 429,800
Net Income 150,430 347,882
Retained Earnings, July 1 347 882 -
Retained Earnings, June 30 $ 458,312 $ 347, 882
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 202939 $ 60,000
Investments 1,397,785 1,242,798
Total Assets $ 1,600,724 $ 1,302,793
Liabilities and Equity
Liahilities:
Accrued Liabilities $ 879,815 $ 225242
Total Lizbilities §79,815 225,242
Equity:
Retained Eamings - Unreserved 720,909 1,077,556
Total Retained Earnings 720,909 1,077,556
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 1,600,724 $ 1,302,798
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Fiscal
Year

1993
1994
1895
1896
1997

1598

1999

2001

2002

* Reflects net amount less state required roll-back.

Tax
Year

1892
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

1999

2001

CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
{Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

City of County Bonds Special
Alpharetta And Operating Funds District Schools

10.56 14.51 476 2515
838 14.0% 476 21.26
7.88 14.01 476 21.26
7.88 14.01 4.76 21.26
7.88 14.01 476 21.26
7.88 14.01 4.76 21.26
7.88 14.01 4.76 21.26
7.88 13.69 4.76 15.76
7.88 14 4.76 2015

7.478 13.34 4.70 19.02

Source: Fulton County Tax Assessors Office.

90

State
Levy

0.25
0.25
0.25
0.25
0.26
0.256
0.25
0.25
0.25

025

Total*
55.23
48,66
4816

48.16

- 4816

48.16

48.16

42.34

46.73

4479



Taxpayer

CITY OF ALPHARETTA

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
REAL ESTATE
June 30, 2002

Taxes
Levied

GGP North Point inc.

HBO & Co. of GA

Gardner Drive LLC

AT&T

Norwind Partners LP

Allianz Life Ins. Co. of N. America
Digital Equipment Corp

Weeks Realty LP

Wade William J TR Equifax Bus. Trust
Opus South Corporation

Total

Total Assessed Values for All Taxpayers

Source: City Financial Services Department

$

220,200
131,135
127,248
124,067
114,528
87,670
84,113
77.492
77,147
76,664

1,120,265.65

36

$  2.504,417397

Percent to
Total
Assessed Assessed
Valuation Value
3 30,456,480 122 %
18,137,590 072 %
17,600,000 0.70 %
17,160,000 069 %
15,840,740 063 %
12,125,830 048 %
11,633,950 046 %
10,718,160 043 %
10,670,440 043 %
10,603,650 042 %
3 154,946,840 619 %
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October 18, 2002

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council
and Citizens of the City of Alpharetta:

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Alpharetta,
Georgia (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data,
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To
the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial and
statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the City's organizational chart, a list
of principal officials and a copy of the GFOA Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting for
2001. The financial section includes the general-purpose financial statements, notes and the combining
and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the report of the
independent public accountants. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City for which City Council has fiduciary,

budgetary and legislative control, as well as all of its component units. Component units are legally -
separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable. The City provides a full

range of services.. These services include police and fire protection; municipal court; sanitation

services; recreational activities and cultural events; building inspection and code enforcement; water;

and road maintenance,

Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the combined financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate
their financial position, results of operations and cash flows from those of the primary government. The
Development Authority of Alpharetta is reported as a discretely presented component unit.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

In 1996 Alpharetta began to accumulate tremendous resources due to stringent budgetary policies and
conservative forecasting. That trend continued in fiscal year 2002, with excess revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses by $1,766,569 in the General Fund. Despite national
downturns in the economy, Alpharetta realized very little economic impact, with budgets and staffing
levels continuing to grow consistent with prior year trends. Total fund balance in the General Fund
increased $6,009,507 in the last four fiscal years to a total of $12,115,713. Excess fund balances are
utilized for pay as you go capital projects.



Fines and forfeiture revenue is a result of the City’s portion of citations issued by the Alpharetta Police
Department and adjudicated by the Municipal Court. The revenue source doubled from fiscal year 2001 due to a
change in the administration of the police department. Citations issued have dramatically increased, causing two
additional days of court per month.

The decrease in interest revenue is the largest drop in revenue from fiscal year 2001. A result of the state of the
economy, this revenue source is fess than half of the funds receipted in the prior year. Alpharetta aggressively
manages liquid assets in order to maximize the returns while minimizing the risk associated with the financial
markets with the assistance of investment/portfolio managers at Evergreen Investments, a wholly owned
subsidiary of First Union Bank.

The following schedule presents a summary of General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects and
Expendable Trust Fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, and the percentage of increases and
decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

FY Increase Percent
2002 Percent (Decrease)  Of Increase
Expenditures Amount Of Total From 2001 (Decrease)
Current;
(General Government $ 6,623,667 1438%  $1,114,362 45.50%
Public Safety 11,753,268 25.52 1,665,051 67.99
Engineering, Public Works,

Environmental Services 4,210,890 9.15 150,862 6.16
Parks & Recreation 4,591,862 9.97 216,041 3.82
Other 2,218,559 4,81 {239,711) (9.79)
Capital Outlay 10,880,338 23.63 (162,772) (6.65)

Debt Service:
General Obligation Bonds 4,931,756 10.72 (405,995) (16.74)
Capital Leases 836,461 1.82 115,117 {4.70)
Total $46,046,301 _10000% § 2,448955

In comparison with fiscal year 2001, the City realized the most significant increase of expenditures in Public
Safety, for the second consecutive year. Consistent with last year’s increase, Public Safety’s increase of $1.6
million is due largely to the adding of personnel. The second largest increase, General Government, includes the
departments comprised of delivering day-to-day services to citizen’s, business owners, and stakeholders of
Alpharetta.

Capital Projects Fund. Proceeds of general obligation bond issues are accounted for in the Bond IT and
Bond HI Construction Funds. Completed capital improvement projects and capital improvement projects in
progress are accounted for in the general fixed asscts account group. Al capital projects in excess of $25,000 are
accounted for in the General Capital Project Fund. Sources of revenue are interfund transfers.

Enterprise Fund.  The City's enterprise operation is comprised of the Water System. Several of the City's
prior major initiatives directly relate to the Water System. These improvements, such as the installation of six
miles of water mains, have provided its users with expanded services. To provide the necessaty resources for the
repayment of debt to make these improvements, the City approved an increase in water rates, which took effect in
fiscal year 1990. This increase, plus charges generated through increased usage and tap fees from new
customers, provided the Water System with needed additional resources. The Water System is essentially self-
supporting by virtue of its user fee collections.




In 1999 the City issued Water Revenue Bonds in the amount of $2,470,000 for the purpose of refunding prior
notes to the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority, The bond bears an interest rate of 4.435% and is
payable in bi-annual installments until fiscal year 2011.

Water and Solid Waste operating revenues and expenses are presented below for the past two years.

FY FY Amount of Percent
. 2002 2001 Increase Of Increase
Revenyes: Amount Amount {Decrease) {Decrease)
Water Revenue $2,211,115 $2,043,308 $176,807 8.00%
Sewer Revenue 1,713,955 2,056,074 (342,119) (19.96)
Solid Waste Revenue 1,622,493 1,434,537 187.956 11.58
Total Operating Revenue $5,547,563 $5,278,020 $22 644 (38)%
Operating Expenses:
Personal Services $766,708 $616,653 $150,055 131.99%
Purchased Services 1,650,809 1,555,768 135,041 118.79
Materials and Supplies 2,965,684 3,092,656 (126,572) (111.69)
Depreciation 226,831 281,206 (54,375) {47.83)
Other 53.062 62.995 9.934 8.74
Total Operating Expenses $5,703,094  $5,609,278 $113,683
Operating Loss ($155,531) ($331,258) ($486,789)

The above figures represent both the Water and Solid Waste Enterprise Funds. All categories of revenue
increased with the exception of sewer. Sewer rates are calculated on the basis of consumed water and during the
year we saw a dramatic increase in the number of irrigation meters installed, negating sewer charges. These
meters are used by residential as well as commercial customers in order to maintain expenses associated with
utilities. The largest increase in expenses comes from the addition of personnel in personal services (includes
benefits). Overall, the increased expenses of $113,683 are comparable to prior years. City council will be
reviewing consumption rates associated with both funds during fiscal year 2003 to determine if our current
pricing structure is appropriate.

Debt Administration. At June 30, 2002, the City had four general obligation bond issues outstanding in the
amount of $51,185,000, The City cwrently has a rating of AA from Standard & Poor's Corporation and of Aa2
from Moody's Investors Service for the issuance of debt on the general obligation bond issues. Under current
state statutes, the City's general obligation bonded debt issues are subject to a legal limitation based on 10 percent
of total assessed value of real and personal property. As of June 30, 2002, the City's net general obligation
bonded debt of $54,066,466 was well below the legal limit of $250,441,740 and debt per capita equaled
$1,435.89.

Cash Management. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits and certificates
of deposit, as well as money market investment accounts. All investments are generally made with the infention
to hold to maturity. The City earned interest revenue of $900,746 on all governmental and expendable trust
investments for the year ended June 30, 2002.

The City's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its
portfolio. Accordingty, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. All
collateral on deposits was held by the City's agent, in the City's name, or by the City’s agent. Investments held by
the City during the year and at June 30, 2002, are classified in the notes to the financial statements as defined by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2002

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Alpharetta, Georgia ("City”), which was founded in 1858, operates undera charter adopted July
1, 1981, and has 2 mayor/council form of government. The City provides such services as police
protection, fire and rescue services, parks and recreational needs, water and sewer services and public
works.. The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The more significant of the City of
Alpharetta, Georgia’s accounting policies are described below: :

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Alpharetta is 2 Georgia municipal corporation with a seven-member City Council comprised of
amayor and six district council members (elected at large). As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the City of Alpharetta (the
primary government} and its component units.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City (the
primary government) and its only component unit - Development Authority of Alpharetta (the
“Authority”). The Development Authority of Alpharetta s included in the City’s reporting entity because
of the significance of its financial relationship with the City.

The Authority promotes the industrial and economic development of the City of Alpharetta. The
Authority is legally separate from the City; however, the City appoints all of the Authority’s Board members
and has a financial obligation to the Authority. The City does not control the operations of the Authority.
The Authority is reported as a discretely presented component unit in the City’s financial statements due to
its financial dependence on the City. Separate financial statements for the Authority are not prepared.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account groups. A fundis
an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds
maintained are consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account groupsarea reporting device to
account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation - Continued

The government has the following fund rv-pes and account groups:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for the City’s general government activities. Governmental fund
types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they are “measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transactions can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers all revenues available if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and
certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest and special assessments are susceptible to accrual. Sales
tax collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the City is also recognized as revenue. Other
receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the City and are recognized as
revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual
criteria are met. Expenditures-driven grants are recognized as revenue then the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. All governmental funds have legally
adopted annual budgets.

Governmental funds include the following fund types:

General Fund - This fund is the City’s primary operating fund. [t accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund - These funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures
for specific purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects).

Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by
proprietary funds.

Capital Project Fund - These funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major
capital projects not being financed by proprietary funds.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation - Continued

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. As provided by generally accepted accounting principles, the
City only applied FASB pronouncements issued through November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting

for its proprietary funds. All proprietary funds have legally adopted annual budgets. Proprietary funds
include the following fund types:

Enterprise Fund - These funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operatedina
manner similar to private business or where the City has decided that the determination of revenues
earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

Internal Service Fund ~ This fund accounts for operations that provide services to other departments or
agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity oras an agent on behalf of others,
Trust funds account for assets held by the City under the terms of a formal trust agreement. Each fiduciary
fund has a legally adopted annual budget.

Expendable Trust Fund - This fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the governmental
fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting, Expendable trust funds account
for assets when both the principal and interest may be spen.

Account Groups

General Fixed Asset Account Group - This account group is used to account for fixed assets not accounted
for in proprietary or trust funds.

General Long-term Debt Account Group - This account group is used to account for general long-term debt
and certain other Habilities that are not specific liabilities of proprietary or trust funds.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid
investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near maturity that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. The City is authorized to
invest idle cash from operating accounts for the purpose of increasing income through investment
activities. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, repurchase
agreements, and commercial paper. It is the policy of the City to include certificates of deposit as
investments. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments are recorded at fair value.

D. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories consist of expendable
supplies held for consumption and are charged as expenditures when used. Amounts paid to vendors for
services that will benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid items are expended over the
estimated useful life or the applicable contract term, if shorter.

E. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. No
depreciation is provided on general fixed assets. The City does not record the cost or estimated cost of
public domain (infrastructure) fixed assets. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment in the
Proprietary Fund is provided by the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and structures 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 40-60 years
Machinery and equipment 5-40 years

F. Revenue Recognition for Enterprise Fund

Revenue is recognized when the related services are provided to customers. Accordingly, unbilled service
revenue is accrued in the enterprise fund.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - Continued

B. Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Capital Projects

Fund balances (budget) $ 4,662,777
Timing difference (project-length budgets) 8,876,221
Fund balances {unbudgeted funds) -
Fund balances (GAAP) $_13.538.998

C. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2002, expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following funds:

General Fund:
City Administrator $ 15,978
Parks and Recreation 3 78,555
Human Resources $ 51,561
Impact Fee Fund $ 996,653
Fleet Management Fund $ 78,373

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GRQUPS

A. Deposits

At June 30, 2002, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $19,844,796 and the related bank balances
totaled $20,802,477. The bank balances differ from the carrying amounts due to outstanding checks and
deposits. The City’s deposits are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the
City at year end. Category 1 includes deposits that are covered by Federal Depository Insurance or by
collateral held by the city or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes cash collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the City’s name. Category
3 includes uncollateralized bank deposits or deposits collateralized by securities held by the pledging
financial institution or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City’s name.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

A. Deposits and Investments - Continued

The bank balances are classified as follows at June 30, 2002:

Category Bank Balance
1 $ 20,802,477

2 "

3 "
$__20,802,477

Investments - The City is authorized to invest idle cash from operating accounts in obligations of the U.S.
Treasury, repurchase agreements, and commercial paper. City may also invest in certificates of deposits of
banks which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provided, however, that the

portion of such certificates of deposit in excess of the amount insured by the FDIC is adequately
collateralized.

Investments are classified by degree of credit risk into the three categories described below:

Category 1~ Insured or registered, with the securities held by the City or its agent in the City’s name.
Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with the securities held by the counter party’s trust
department or agent in the City’s name.

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with the securities held by the counter party or by its trust
department or agent, but not in the City’s name.

Investments held by the city at June 30, 2002 are summarized below:

Type of Category
Investment 1 2 3
US. Govemnment and Agency Securities $.16,221,533 $ - $ -
$16221,533  § : $ -
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 -~ DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

A. Deposits and Investments — Continued

A reconciliation of bank deposits and investments reported above to cash and cash equivalents reported on

the combined balance sheet is as follows:

Carrying amount of deposits
Carrying amount of investments

Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments

Total

B. Recetvables

$ 19,844,796
16,221,533

$ 36,066,329

$ 11,364,946
1,529,769

23,171,614

$ 36,066,329

Receivables as of year-end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Taxes:
Property taxes
Orher taxes
Alcoholic beverage taxes
Local option sales tax
Motor vehicle intangible tax
Franchise taxes

Less: Allowances for uncollectibles

30

General Fund

$ 345,649
95,389

92,485
529,346
746,476

43,339

1,852,684

(4.087)
$_._.1,848,597

Debt Service

5 106,823
28,755

135578

(1.602)
5. 133976



CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued
C. Fixed Assets

A summary of changes in General Fixed Assets follows:

Balance Additions Balance
July 1, 2001 (Deletions) [une 30, 2002
Land $ 16,723,526 $ 1,520,000 $ 18,243,526
Buﬂdings 23,213,763 2,103,522 25,317,285
Improvements other than building 7,254,657 242 470 7,497,127
Equipment 11,107,790 (93,988) 11,013,802

Total $58,299736  $__ 3772002 $_ 62,071,740

A summary of Enterprise Fund fixed assets at June 30, 2002 follows:

Water System

Improvements other than buildings 3 6,456,851
Equipment 196,556
Total 6,653,407
Less accumulated depreciation (2,048,202)
Net fixed assets $._ 4,605,205
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

E. Long-Term Debt - Continyed
2. General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the

City. These bonds generally are issued as 25-year serial bonds, except for refunding issues, with equal
amounts of principal maturing each year,

General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Principal
Qutstanding

General Obligation Bonds issued March 11, 1998 in the

amount of $24,900,000 bearing interest rates of 3.9%

to 5% payable on May 1, and November 1, serially to

fiscal year 2012 $ 24,255,000
General Obligations Bonds issued March 1, 1992 in the

amount of $19,000,000 bearing interest rates of 3.5%

to 6.5% payable on May 1, and November, serially to

year 2010, 12,295,000
General Obligation bonds issued May 10, 1995 in the

amount of $17,000,000 bearing interest rate of 4.5%

t0 5.6% payable on May 1, and November 1, serially to

fiscal year 2012. 13,335,000
General Obligation Bonds issued May 10, 1995 in the

amount of $2,575,000 bearing interest rates of 4.0%

to 5.15% payable on May 1, and November 1, serially to

fiscal year 2006. 1,300,000

$.51,185,000
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

E. Long-Term Debt - Continued

2. General Obligation Bonds

The annual requirements to amortize all General Obligation Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2002 are as
follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2003 3,110,000 2,695,159 5,805,159
2004 3,575,000 2,540,188 6,115,188
2005 4,080,000 2,361,790 6,441,790
2006 4,645,000 2,157,541 6,802,541
2007 5,210,000 1,935,805 7,145,805
Thereafter 30,565,000 4,827,850 35,392,850

Total $.51,185,000 $.16,518,333 $_67,703,333

3. Water Revenue Bonds

Water Revenue Bonds issued May 1, 1999 in the amount of $2,470,000 bearing an interest rate of 4.435%
payable on May 1 and November 1; maturing through fiscal year 2011. $1,995,000 was outstanding at June
30,2002. These bonds are collateralized by all revenues of the City’s water system.

The annual requirements to amortize all revenue bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Total

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Revenue Bonds
2003 $ 170,000 $ 86,593 $ 256,593

2004 180,000 78,943 258,943

2005 190,000 70,849 260,849

2006 195,000 62,423 257,423

2007 205,000 53,663 258,663
Thereafter 1,055,000 121.408 1,176,408
Total $__1.995,000 $_._ 473,879 $_ 2,468,879
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 ~ DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

E. Long-Term Debt - Continued

4. Capital Lease Obligations

In March, 1997 the City entered into a capital lease for the principal sum of $1,450,000 for the purchase of
a7.00 acres site, including an office/ warehouse building containing 30,000 gross square feet, to be used as
an operating complex for engineering & public works. Itsterm is six years and is payable monthly in the
amount of $23,352 at an annual interest rate of 5.00%. The assets acquired are utilized in the City’s general
operations and are presented in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Future lease payments under the above capital lease are as follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2003 $_183.363 $__ 3455 $__ 186,818
Total $_183,363 $__ 3455 $_ 186,818

During fiscal year 2000, the City entered into several capital leases for the principal sum of $260,089 for the
purchase of twelve vehicles and trucks. The term is three years on each and they are payable monthly in
the total amount of $9,490 at annual interest rates from 5.53% to 6.03%. The majority of the assets
acquired are utilized in the City’s general operations and are presented in the General Fixed Assets Account
Group. The remaining assets are utilized in the City’s Water Fund.

Future lease payments for all vehicle capital leases for those assets presented in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group are as follows:

Year ending June 30 . Principal Interest Total
2003 $ 96,684 $ 9,884 $ 106,568
2004 101,123 5,443 106,566
2005 ' 74,640 1,178 75,818
Total $_272447 $__16,505 $_ 288,952
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - Continued

E. Long-Term Debt - Continued

4. Capital Lease Obligations - Continued

The City paid-off all capital leases related to assets held in the Water Fund during 2002,

5.  Development Authority of Alpharetta Revenue Bonds

During fiscal year 1999, the Development Authority of Alpharetta entered into an agreement with Georgia
State University Foundation to construct and finance an education facility. As a result, 20-year revenue
bonds were issued by the Authority. The City has a contract with the Development Authority in which it is
obligated to pay 16.5% of the total principal and interest payments on the bonds. In conjunction with this
agreement, the Foundation entered into a direct financing lease in which the Foundation’s lease payments
cover the remaining 83.5% of the annual principal and interest payments on the bonds. The bonds are
payable on May 1 and November 1, serially to fiscal year 2019.

The annual requirements to amortize the Development Authority’s portion (83.5%) of the revenue bonds
outstanding as of June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2003 346,525 358,055 704,580
2004 359,050 344,736 703,786
2005 375,750 330,681 706,431
2006 388,275 315,876 704,151
2007 404,975 300,307 705,282
Thereafter 6,433,675 1,962,740 8,396,415

Total $8,308.250 $_.3,612,395 $_11,920.645

6. Notes Payable

As described above, the Development Authority of Alpharetta has an agreement with the Georgia State
University Foundation to construct and finance an education facility. In conjunction with this agreement,
the City hasa contract with the Development Authority in which it is obligated to pay 16.5% of the total
principal and interest payments on the bonds. The note is payable through fiscal year 2019.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2002

NOTE 6 - NET INVESTMENT AND DIRECT FINANCING LEASE - CONTINUED

At June 30, 2002, future lease payments receivable are as follows:

Fiscal year
2003 $ 704,580
2004 703,786
2005 706,431
2006 704,151
2007 705,282
Thereafter 8,396,416
Total minimum lease payments 11,920,646
Unearned revenue (3,612,396)

Present value of future payments  §$ $8,308,250
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Assgels

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3
Investrnents
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets 3

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounis Payable $
Deferred Income
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for Encumbrancas
Unreserved:
Designated for Capital Projects
Designated for Fleet Management
Total Fund Balance

Taotal Liabilities and Fund Balance $

CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

June 30, 2002

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

{(With Comparative Tolals for Year Ended June 30, 2001}

General Fleet Bond I Totals
Capital Projects Managemsnt Construction 2002 2001
356671 132,171 $ 9,113,646 $ 96024838 $ 2,745,412
5,728,184 218,602 - 5,946,788 21,189,959
14077 - - 14077 -
6,000,932 § 350,773 5 9,113,646 $ 15,563,351 § 23,936,374
1068973 § 400 3 237,425 $ 1,307,788 3 1,369,185
716,555 - - 716,558 -
1,786,528 400 237.425 2,024,353 1,369,185
2,250,587 - 604,493 2,855,080 4,265,629
2,061,817 - 8.271,728 10,333,545 18,188,577
- 350,373 - 350,373 101,980
4,312,404 350,373 B,876.221 13,538,998 22,567,186
60098832 § 350,773 3 9,113,646 $ 15,563,351 $ 23,936,371
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable (net of allowances for
uncoliectibles)
Total Assets
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Deferred Income

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved:
Raserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved:
Designated for Capital Projects
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance
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2002 2001
$ 358,671 £ 706,216
5,728,184 9,335,840
14,077 -
$ 6,098,932 $ 10,042,056
$ 1,089973 $ 353,813
716,555 -
1,786,528 353,813
2,250,587 1,476,117
2,061,817 8,212,126
4,312,404 9,688,243
$§ 6,098,932 $ 10,042,056




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEQRGIA

BOND I CONSTRUCTION
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From Incaption and for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Actual to June 30, 2002

Total Reported
Project In Prior Current
Estimate Years Year Total
Revenues:
Interest income 3 1,528,805 § 1993591 % - § 1,993,591
Other 2,000,000 3,319,781 13,572 3,333,353
Total Revenues 3,528,805 5,313,372 13,572 5,326,944
Expenditures;
Capital Qutlay 20,183,540 22,347,058 36,774 22,383,832
Debt Service - Cost of Bond Issuance 345,265 334,076 - 334,076
Total Expenditures 20,528,805 22,681,134 36,774 22,717,908
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures (17,000,000) {17,367,762) (23,202} (17,390,964)
Other Financing Sources:

General Obligation Band Proceeds 17,000,000 17,000,000 - 17,000,000

Operating Transfers In - - 95,936 95,938

Total Cther Financing Sources 17,000,000 17,000,000 95,936 17,095,936
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and

Other Scurces Over {Under)

Expenditures and Other Saurces % - (367,762) 72,734 (295,028)
Residual Equity Transfer 295,028 - 295,028
Fund Balance, Juty 1 - (72,734) -

Fund Balance, June 30 $ (72,734) $ - 3 -
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

BOND lil CONSTRUCTION
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Cash
investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Total Liabilities
Fund Bafance:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved, Designated for Capital Projects

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance
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2002 2001

$ 9113846 3 2,037,259

- 11,752,159

$ 9113846 $ 13789418
5 237,425 § 939,721
237,425 939,721
604,483 2,789,512
8,271,728 10,060,185
8,876,221 12,849,697
$ 9113646 § 13739418




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA

BOND It CONSTRUCTION
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETY AND ACTUAL

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Revenues:
Investment Eamings

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Capital Quttay
Debt Service - Cost of Bond Issuance

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
General Obligation Bond Proceeds

Operating Transfer Qut
_ Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uses

Residuai Equity Transfer

Fund Balance, Juiy 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Actual to June 30, 2002

Total Reported
Project in Prior Current
Estimate Years Year Total
§ 1,245000 35516568 § 203054 3% 3754612
1,245,000 3,551,558 203,054 3,754 612
25,647,000 15,526,436 4,080,594 19,607,030
498,000 330,369 - 330,369
26,145,000 156,856,805 4,080,594 19,937,399
(24,900,000) (12,305,247} (3,877,540) (16,182,787)
24,900,000 25,449,972 - 25,449,972
- - {95,936} {95,336)
24,500,000 25,449,972 (95,836) 25,354,036
$ - 13,144,725 (3.973,476) 9,171,249
{295,028) - (295,028)
- 12,849,697 -
12,849697 $ 8876221 $ 8,876,221
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ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance
for Uncollectibies)
Inventory, at Cost
Total Currents Assets

Restricted Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEQRGIA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Property and Equipment at Cost Less Accumutated

Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salaries

Accrued Interest

Compensated Absences Payable

Notes Payable - Revenue Bonds Current Partion

Capital Lease Payable - Current Portion
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Equity

Customer Deposits

Compensated Absences Less Current Portion

Notes Payable - Revenue Bonds
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Contributed Capital

Retained Earnings-Restricted

Retained Earnings - Unrestricted
Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Totals
Walter Solid Waste 2002 2001

5 163,125 § 75,370 238495 3 37,480
78,141 325,251 403,392 1,025,469
632,327 275,157 907,484 841,082
95,575 - 95,575 97,045
969,168 675,778 1,644 946 2,001,076
1,529,769 - 1,529,769 1,120,950
4,605,205 - 4,605,205 4,787,231
4,605,205 - 4,605,205 4,787,231

$ 7104142 % 675778 7,779920 % 7,900,257
$ 594054 $ 177,466 771,520 $ 837,467
12,452 - 12,452 9,034

14,746 - 14,748 .
22,936 - 22,936 13,028
170,000 - 170,000 -

- - - 12,627

814,188 177,466 991,654 872,156
223777 - 223,777 113,859

26,454 - 26,454 25,323
1,825,000 - 1,825,000 2,160,000
2,075,231 - 2,075,231 2,299,182
2,889,419 177,466 3,066,885 3,171,338
2,380,117 - 2,380,117 2,380,117
174,746 - 174,746 176,730
1,659,860 498,312 2,158,172 2,182,072
4,214,723 498,312 4,713,035 4,737,919

$ 7,104,142 § 675778 7779920 § 7909257
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CiTY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2002
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2001}

Totals
Water Solid Waste 2002 . 2001
Operating Revenues: ' B
Charges for Services $ 3,925,070 § 1,622,493 § 5,547,563 $ 5524919
Operating Expenses:
Operation and Maintenance:
Billing 401,620 19,089 420,709 282,206
Operations 3,415,595 1,639,959 5,055,554 5,045,866
Depreciation 226,831 - 226,831 281,206
Total Operating Expenses 4,044 046 1,659,048 5,703,004 §,609,278
Operating Income (Loss) (118,976) (36,555) (155,531) (84,359)
Non-cperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investrment Earnings 36,746 11,985 48,731 102,404
Interest Expense (93,084) - (93,084) {118,140)
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (56,338) 11,985 (44,353) (15,736)
Income (Loss) before operating transfers {175,314} {24,570) (199,884) (100,095)
Operating transfer in - 175,000 175,000 429,800
Net income {Loss) (175,314) 150,430 (24,884) 329,705
Retained Earnings, July 1 2,009,920 347,882 2,357,802 2,028,097
Retained Eamings, June 30 s 1,834,606 $ 498,312 $ 2332918 $ 2,357,802
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND I
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2002 and 2001 l
ASSETS
2002 2001
Current Assetls
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 163,125 $ 14,452
Investments 78,141 822 808
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance l
for Uncollectibles) 632,327 588,275
Inventory, at Cost 95,575 97,045
Total Currents Assets 969,168 1,522,580
Restricted Assets I
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,523,768 1,120,850
Property and Equipment at Cost Less Accumulated l
Depreciation 4,605,205 4,787,231
Total Fixed Assets 4,605,205 4,787,231 I
Total Assets $ 7,104,142 $ 7430761
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY I
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 594,054 $ 690,887
Accrued Salaries 12,452 9,034
Accrued Interest 14,746 15,966
Compensated Absences Payable 22,936 13,028
Notes Payable - Revenue Bonds Current Portion 170,000 165,000 I
Capital Lease Payable - Current Portion - 12,627
Total Current Liabilities 814,188 906,542
Noncurrent Liabilities I
Customer Deposits 223777 113,859
Compensated Absences Less Current Portion 26,454 25,323
Notes Payable - Revenue Bonds 1,825,000 1,995,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2075231 2,134,182 I
Total Liabilities 2,888,419 3,040,724
Equity I
Contributed Capital 2,380,117 2,380,117
Retained Earnings-Restricted 174,746 175,730 l
Retained Earnings - Unrestricted 1,659,860 1,834,190
Total Equity 4,214,723 4,390,037 I
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 7,104,142 $ 7.430,761
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND
BALANCE SHEET

June 20, 2002 and 2001

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accountis Receivable (Net of Allowance
for Uncollectibles)
Total Currents Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Totat Current Liahilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
Retained Earmings - Unrestricted

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity
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2002 2001
$ 75370 % 23,028
325,251 202,661
275,157 252,807
675,778 478,496
$ 675778 § 478,496
$ 177466 % 130614
177,466 130,614
177,466 130,614
498,312 347,882
498,312 347,882
$ 675778 $ 478,498




CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2002
(With Comparative Amounts for June 30, 2001)

Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities:

Operating Loss $

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Increase in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Accounts Payable

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Operating transfer in

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received
Sale of Investments

Purchase of Investments

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

2002 2001

(36,555) §  (89,853)

(22,350) (252,807)
46,852 130,614
24,502 (122,193)

{12,053) (212,046)

Net Increase in Cash

Cash, July 1

175,000 429,800
175,000 429,800
8,231 7.935
202,661 -
(321,497) (202,661)
{110,605) (194,726)
52,342 23,028
23,028 -

Cash, June 30 5

75370 § 23,028

Supplemental Disclosure an Non-Cash Investing Activities:

The City adjusts the purchase of investments to reflect the $3,754 increase in the fair value of

investments.
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

June 30, 2002

Assessed Value

Debt Limit 10% of Assessed Value -

Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit
Total General Bonded Debt
Less Amount Available for Repayment of general obligation bonds

$ 2,504,417 397

250,441,740

54,066,466
2,260,946 51,805,520

Legal Debt Margin

Percentage Ratios:
Legal Debt Margin
Debt Application to Debt Limit

Legal Debt Margin

$ 188,636,220

100.00%
20.69%

79.31%

Source: Fulton County Tax Assessors Office and City Financial Services Department
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT

June 30, 2002

Amount Pércentage Amount
Jurisdiction Outstanding Applicable Applicable
Fulton County $ 49,453,380 5.39% 2,665,537
Fulton County School District 244 920,000 9.68% 23,708,256
City of Alpharetta _ 55,347,750 100.00% 55,347,750
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt - 81,721,543
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CITY OF ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA
MISCELLANEOUS AND DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
June 30, 2002

Police Protection : (Source: City Police Department)

Number of Employees 96
Number of Stations 1
Number of Patrol Units 72
Number of Police Motorcycles 6

Recreation: (Source: City Recreation Department)

Number of Parks and Playgrounds 7
Acreage Parks and Playgrounds 537 acres
Number of Swimming Pools 1
Number of Athletic Fields 28
Number of Recreation Buildings 7
Number of Tennis Courts 11
Number of Hockey Rinks 2

Education:

Number of Schools by Type: (Source: Fulton
County Board of Education)

Elementary 3
Middle School 2
High Schoot 1
College 2
Municipal Water Service: (Source: City Engineering & Public Works Department)
Daily Distribution 1,722,222 gallons
Miles of Water Mains 85.00 miles
Number of Fire Hydrants 563.00
Number of Service Connections 3,467
Municipal Sanitation Service: (Source: City Engineering & Public Works Department)
Number of Consumers 8,834
Elections: (Source: City Clerk Office)
Number of Registered Voters 16,767
Number of VVotes Cast in last Municipal Election 1,385
Percentage of Registered Voters Participation
Voting in Last Municipal Election 8%
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